
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 & 2021
Serving the California counties of: Los Angeles, 
Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino & Ventura

ANNUAL 
COMPREHENSIVE 
FINANCIAL REPORT



 
 

This page intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 
REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY 

A Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Among: 
 

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority 
Orange County Transportation Authority 

Riverside County Transportation Commission 
San Bernardino County Transportation Authority 

Ventura County Transportation Commission 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT 
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 

 
 
 

Prepared by: 
Finance Department 

 
   



 
 

This page intentionally left blank



 
 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY 
For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Table of Contents 
I Introductory 

Letter of Transmittal ................................................................................................................................ i 

Metrolink System Map .......................................................................................................................... ix 

Board of Directors ................................................................................................................................. xi 

Management Team ............................................................................................................................... xv 

Organizational Structure ..................................................................................................................... xvii 

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting ..................................................... xix 

Mission Statement ............................................................................................................................... xxi 
 
II  Financial 

Report of the Independent Auditors ....................................................................................................... 1 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information) ................................. 5 

Basic Financial Statements: 

Balance Sheets ................................................................................................................................. 15 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position .................................................... 16 

Statements of Cash Flows ................................................................................................................ 17 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements ................................................................................................ 19 

Required Supplementary Information .................................................................................................. 53 
 
III Statistical 

Statistical Section Overview ................................................................................................................. 63 

Financial Trends: 

Changes in Net Position, Net Positions by Component, and Percentages of  

Operating Costs Covered by Revenues ............................................................................................ 64 

Table of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position ........................................................... 65 

Sources of Capital Contributions ..................................................................................................... 66 

Schedule of Outstanding Debt .......................................................................................................... 67 

Revenue Capacity: 

Passenger Fares and Farebox Recovery Ratio ................................................................................. 68 

Subsidy/Passenger Mile ................................................................................................................... 69 

Demographic and Economic Information ............................................................................................ 70 

Operating Information: 

Ridership, Annual and Average Weekday ....................................................................................... 71 

Total Train Miles .............................................................................................................................. 72 

Service Hours and On-Time Performance ....................................................................................... 73 

Miscellaneous Statistics ................................................................................................................... 74 

Ticket Categories.............................................................................................................................. 75 

 

IV  Supplementary Information (Unaudited) 
Unearned Revenue and Advances on Capital Purchases ...................................................................... 79 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



INTRODUCTORY



 
 

This page intentionally left blank



   

i 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

January 31, 2023 
 
The Board of Directors 
Southern California Regional Rail Authority 
900 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1500 
Los Angeles, CA   90017 

 
Dear Board Members: 
 
Submitted herewith is the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of the Southern California 
Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, with comparative information 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. This report consists of management’s representations concerning 
the finances of SCRRA.   
 
Management is responsible for the completeness and reliability of all the information presented in this 
report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management has established a 
comprehensive system of internal controls that are designed both to protect SCRRA’s assets from loss, 
theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of SCRRA’s basic 
financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Given the 
cost of internal controls should not outweigh its benefits, SCRRA’s comprehensive framework of internal 
controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial 
statements will be free from material misstatement.  SCRRA assert that, to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material aspects.  The enclosed data reports the 
financial position and results of operations of the business type activity of SCRRA, an enterprise fund.  
This report includes the necessary disclosures to allow the reader to understand SCRRA’s basic financial 
activities. 
 
Eide Bailly, LLP, a firm of licensed Certified Public Accountants, had been retained to perform an 
independent audit of SCRRA’s financial statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of SCRRA for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are 
free of material misstatements. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, the evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements; assessing the accounting 
principles used; significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. Based upon the audit, Eide Bailly, LLP concluded that SCRRA’s basic financial statements 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The report of the 
independent audit is presented as the first component of the financial section within this report. 
 
The independent audit of SCRRA’s basic financial statements was part of a broader, federally mandated 
Single Audit, under the guidelines of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance), designed to meet the requirements of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single 
Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report on the fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with GAAP, with a special emphasis on internal controls. Tests of transactions  
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and account balances are performed to ensure that the information presented in the basic financial 
statements, and notes thereof, are accurate. In addition, SCRRA must prepare a Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards, which is considered supplementary financial information and is unique to recipients of 
federal assistance. The schedule details all the federal assistance expended by the recipient during the year 
and categorized by federal program. The schedules and audit results are available in SCRRA’s separately 
issued Single Audit Report. 
 
GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany 
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter 
of transmittal is intended to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. SCRRA’s 
MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent audit. 
 
Profile of the Agency 
 
During the late 1980s, several agencies conducted studies and developed plans for commuter rail 
transportation in the Southern California region. These efforts gained momentum with the passage of local 
sales tax measures for transportation in Riverside and San Bernardino counties, and in 1990, in Los 
Angeles and Orange counties. In June 1990, at the request of local officials, the California State 
Legislature enacted Senate Bill 1402, Chapter 4 of Division 12 of the Public Utilities Code. This bill 
required the county transportation commissions of Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, and San Bernardino to 
jointly develop a plan for regional transit services within the multi-county region. Many of the supporters 
of commuter rail worked on a State rail bond measure that passed in November 1990.  The measure 
combined with local resources and other State funds provided the funding to purchase the rail rights-of-
way and perform the construction for what was to become the Metrolink system. 
 
In June 1991, following an eight-month cooperative planning effort, the four transportation commissions, 
in conjunction with the Ventura County Transportation Commission, Los Angeles-San Diego Rail 
Corridor Agency, and Southern California Association of Governments, produced a report entitled, 
“Southern California Commuter Rail, 1991 Regional System Plan.” The report outlined plans for a system 
to connect Southern California consisting of six commuter rail lines comprised of more than 400 miles of 
track and 60 stations by 1995. This ambitious plan would define what is now the nation’s third largest 
commuter rail system. 
 
In August 1991, SCRRA, a regional Joint Powers Authority (JPA), was formed. Voting members, known 
as Member Agencies, with their respective number of votes consist of Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (LACMTA), four votes; Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), two 
votes; Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC), two votes; San Bernardino County 
Transportation Authority (SBCTA), two votes; and Ventura County Transportation Commission (VCTC), 
one vote. Ex-officio members of SCRRA include the Southern California Association of Governments 
(SCAG), the San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG), and the State of California Department 
of Transportation (Caltrans).  
 
SCRRA is a separate entity apart from any Member Agency, each of which has an independent board. The 
Member Agencies and other public entities provide transportation within the counties serviced by 
SCRRA. SCRRA is not considered to be a component unit of any other reporting entity. 
 
SCRRA’s purpose is to plan, design, construct, and administer the operation of regional commuter rail 
lines serving Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino and Ventura counties. SCRRA named the 
regional commuter rail system “Metrolink.” The first three lines (San Bernardino, Santa Clarita, and 
Ventura) started operation in October 1992. The Riverside Line was added in June 1993, and the Orange 
County Line that extends 19 miles into northern San Diego County was added in April 1994. The sixth 
line, Inland Empire - Orange County, the nation’s first suburb-to-suburb commuter rail line, was added in  
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October 1995. In May 2002, the 91 Line was added to provide an alternative to Inland Empire and western 
Orange County commuters traveling through Fullerton and into Los Angeles. During 2006/07, Metrolink  
carried its hundred-millionth passenger and opened its 55th station, maintaining its place as one of the 
fastest growing commuter rail systems in the nation. 
 
In June 2016, the 91 Line was extended to Perris Valley to provide service to an additional section of the 
Inland Empire. In December 2017, the new San Bernardino Downtown station was added to increase 
regional mobility. In May 2018, the new Burbank Airport-North station (Antelope Valley Line) was 
opened which expanded Metrolink’s train-to-plane connectivity by providing additional daily access 
directly to the Hollywood Burbank airport. 
 
Metrolink continues to connect the Southern California region, providing access to jobs and new housing 
opportunities, while providing significant benefits to improving the efficiency of the transportation system 
and improving air quality. SCRRA continues its role as the leader in safety and technology among 
commuter rail systems in the United States.  Metrolink was the first passenger railroad in the nation to 
complete implementation of Positive Train Control (PTC) technology and submission for federal 
certification. Metrolink launched mobile ticketing in 2016 and modified its fare system to increase 
ridership. Also, Metrolink began replacing its aging locomotive fleet with emission-reducing Tier 4 
locomotives.  
 
The Metrolink commuter rail system’s six-county service area encompasses approximately 2,300 square 
miles, with a population of over 20 million, and provides service over 538 route miles. Each year, 
Metrolink trains travels over 2.8 million miles, and 60% of Metrolink riders travel across county lines. 
Most notably, Metrolink takes cars off the freeways because 85% of Metrolink riders have an automobile, 
but choose to take the train, thereby helping to reduce congestion on the region’s freeways and improve air 
quality. 
 
Economic Condition and Outlook 
 
SCRRA receives approximately 24% of its operational funding from fares and other operating revenues. 
The balance of its funding comes from its Member Agencies.  The majority of sources for transportation 
funds in these counties are local sales taxes (with the exception of Ventura County), State Rail Bond 
funds, State Transit Assistance funds, State Highway Account funds, State Transit Capital Improvement 
funds, and Federal Transit Administration Capital funds.   
 
As an essential business, SCRRA has continued to run during this worldwide pandemic, but has been 
greatly impacted by the decline in ridership. As of June 2022, Metrolink has recovered nearly 40% of its 
ridership from pre-pandemic levels.  To see how significantly our ridership has changed, Metrolink 
conducted a ridership survey in April of 2022 to provide further insight into demographics and ridership 
behaviors of Metrolink riders.  Based on this survey, we have seen a significant change in ridership 
demographics and travel characteristics, fueled by the loss of traditional commuters.  The demographic 
changes reflect changes in the nature of travel on Metrolink. Pre-pandemic, 80% of Metrolink trips were 
commute trips. That figure has declined to just over half (52%) of total ridership. At the same time the 
percentage of non-commute trips has more than doubled, from 20% pre-pandemic to currently 48%.   
 
Traditional Commuters continue to make up the majority of Metrolink’s riders.  A traditional commuter is 
one that travels four or more days per week, primarily using Monthly and Seven-Day Passes and which 
accounts for 33% of total fare revenue. Traditional Commuters continue to represent Metrolink's largest 
ridership segment with 32% of total ridership, however, this is down from a pre-pandemic share of 70%. 
 
Hybrid work schedules have given rise to the Flex Commuter segment which accounts for 12% of total 
Metrolink ridership. These riders travel 1-3 days per week and are searching for differing ticket offerings 
rather than the traditional monthly pass.  With hybrid work having become the “new normal”, fare options  
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that maximize flexibility, such as the 5-Day and 10-Day Flex Passes will be key to attracting this Flex 
Commuter segment.   
 
Non-commuters, who account for 48% of Metrolink ridership, reflect riders who take Metrolink for a wide 
range of trip purposes. Social visitors are riders who are the most loyal of Metrolink’s ridership segments.  
Even though many do not have a car available, they enjoy the train ride and are highly likely to 
recommend Metrolink to others.  This is the largest and most important segment of non-commuters and 
accounts for 24% of total Metrolink ridership. It is the only growth segment and has seen boardings 
actually increase by 23% since 2019. Leisure riders account for 14% of total ridership and they ride the 
train for the journey itself.  Whether they want to experience Metrolink for the first time, take the train as 
part of a bicycle outing, or simply enjoy traveling by train with their children or spouse, their use of 
Metrolink tends to be highly discretionary with three in four riders having a car available for the trip, 
however, they choose to ride Metrolink. 
 
Long-term Financial Planning 
 
Proactive financial planning is a critical element for SCRRA’s success as it builds for the future. SCRRA 
staff reviews revenue and expenditure projections to ensure financial expectations are realistic and goals 
are achievable. In today’s economic environment, SCRRA, along with governmental agencies at all levels, 
continues to face challenges with respect to funding. As an agency without a direct base of significant 
discretionary revenues, SCRRA relies heavily on the contributions, for both operating and capital, from 
our funding partners and Member Agencies, each of which face multiple priorities. Their challenges 
become SCRRA’s challenges. 
 
At the regional level, SCRRA supports the South Coast Air Quality Management District’s (SCAQMD) 
mission statement and strives to assist in the promotion of clean air in southern California. In partnership 
with SCAQMD, SCRRA is working toward the reduction of locomotive emissions through the acquisition 
of 15 additional Tier 4 locomotives, replacing legacy Tier 2 locomotives and MP36 locomotives.  
Metrolink was awarded a grant in the amount of $51.7 million to replace these locomotives as well as the 
replacement of a diesel car mover with a zero emissions electric car mover. 
 
In July of 2021, Metrolink received a $25 million grant for the Perris Valley Line Capacity Improvement 
Project.  The grant completes the vital funding for 91/Perris Valley Line (91/PVL) improvements, 
ultimately allowing for 30-minute bi-directional service. The upgrades include an additional 2.7 miles of 
double track for added train capacity, a second platform at the Moreno Valley/March Field Station, and an 
expansion and improvement of the Perris-South Station. 
 
The Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities (AHSC) Program makes it easier for Californians 
to drive less by making sure housing, jobs, and key destinations are accessible by walking, biking, and 
transit.  In January of 2022, Metrolink was awarded $6.8 million from the State’s Affordable Housing and 
Sustainable Communities program for the Lancaster Terminal Buildout and installation of a Customer 
Information System (CIS) at the Lancaster Station.  The Lancaster terminal buildout will permit daily 
fueling capacity and equipment turn capacity improvements to increase operational resilience and on-time 
performance on the Antelope Valley Line. 
 
Major Initiatives 
 
During FY 2022, SCRRA achieved significant milestones: 
 

 Metrolink moved to 100% renewable diesel used on all its locomotives in FY22.  This supports 
Metrolink’s initiative as the clean air leader and first rail agency in the nation to go 100% 
renewable.   

 While all train cars undergo regular, daily maintenance, some of the older cars were in need of a 
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“mid-life make-over” to improve their reliability and extend their useful life.  During 2022, 
Metrolink started to receive some of the refurbished cars back and placed them into service.  By 
the end of 2022 Metrolink expects 17 refurbished cars back into service by the end of 2022. 

 During the spring of FY22, Metrolink began testing new Diesel Multiple Units (DMUs) on San 
Bernardino’s Redlands Passenger Rail Line.  The Redlands Passenger Rail Project is an advanced 
regional transportation project designed to connect residents, businesses, and visitors to a variety 
of leisure, education, healthcare, and other destinations. This nine-mile rail project provides new 
transportation choices through the implementation of a new rail service that integrates 
conveniently with other modes such as auto, bus and bicycle.  The Redlands service is expected to 
launch fall of 2022. 

 In celebration of the 52nd anniversary of Earth Day, April 22nd, Metrolink provided free rides and 
encouraged people to help save the planet by pledging to take the train and reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. This campaign was successful in generating a new pandemic ridership record of 20,247 
boardings – a 62% increase over the previous Friday. 

 In response to the positive feedback related to the 5-Day Flex Pass, Metrolink began development 
of the 10-Day Flex Pass to attract telecommuters and other riders who might not go to a work 
location every day.  The new 10-Day-Flex-Pass will be offered in addition to the 5 -Day-Flex -
Pass. This new pass was launched in the spring of 2022 to coincide with the restoration of service.  

 In 2021, Metrolink received the LCTOP Grant to pilot a Low-Income Fair Program.  The program 
will provide needs-based riders with a 50% discount on all Metrolink fares.  The Low-Income Fair 
program is expected to roll out in the fall of 2022 to meet our riders’ needs. 

 Metrolink was certified as a Most Loved Workplace®, by Best Practice Institute (BPI) research 
and analysis.  “To be acknowledged as the Most Loved Workplace® is a reflection of our 
agency’s commitment to our employees, company culture and core values,” Metrolink CEO 
Darren Kettle said.  “it’s significant that Metrolink staff feel valued for their contributions and 
happy at work, as that sentiment also extends to our customer experience.” 

Awards and Acknowledgements 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Southern California Regional Rail 
Authority for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 
SCRRA published an easily readable and efficiently organized ACFR that satisfied both generally 
accepted accounting principles and applicable program requirements.  The Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting is valid for a period of one year only. However, we believe our current 
ACFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program’s 
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another award.   
 
The ACFR is a collaborative effort by SCRRA staff and its independent auditors. We wish to 
acknowledge the willingness to expend the effort necessary to ensure the financial information contained 
herein reflects the highest professional standards. Special thanks are extended to the SCRRA Finance 
Department, in particular: Senior Managers of Finance Alex Barber and Thelma Bloes, Senior 
Accountants Nancy Perez and Emily Truong, Senior Finance Analyst Edison Abrenica, Accountant II 
Diana Gregana, Finance Analyst II Rupa Parameswaran, and Accountant I Anthony San Angelo, who are 
to be commended for their high level of performance.  Special thanks also to our Internal and External 
Auditors, Executive Management, and staff for their assistance and continued support. Their commitment 
and support are vital for the completion of the ACFR in a timely manner. 
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Special appreciation is extended to the Board of Directors for their leadership in providing a vision that 
will ensure SCRRA is prepared for the challenges and opportunities of the future. 

 

Respectfully, 
 
 

                                                                        
         Darren Kettle 

Chief Executive Officer 
Arnold Hackett 

Chief Financial Officer 
  



   

vii 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

viii 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
 



North Hollywood

Wilshire/Western

Chatsworth

Santa Monica

7th/Metro

Nor
walk

Long Beach

Redondo Beach

APU
/Citr

us C
olle

ge

Atlantic

Sa
n D

ieg
oSo

lan
a

Be
ac

h

Oce
an

sid
e

Sa
n C

lem
en

te 
Pie

r

Lim
ited

 Se
rvi

ce

Esc
ond

ido

Riverside-
Downtown

Riverside-
La Sierra

Irv
ine

Tus
tin

Bu
en

a P
ar

k

Sa
nta

 A
na

Glen
da

leBu
rb

an
k -

 D
ow

nto
wn 

Ana
he

im

San Juan Capistrano

Fu
lle

rto
n

Nor
walk

/S
an

ta 
Fe

 Sp
rin

gs

La
gu

na
 N

igu
el/

Miss
ion

 V
iej

o

Sa
n C

lem
en

te

Oran
ge

Oxn
ard

Cam
ari

llo

Moo
rp

ar
k

Sim
i V

all
ey

Cha
tsw

or
th

Ve
ntu

ra 
- E

as
t 

Ve
ntu

ra

Nor
thr

idg
e

Va
n N

uy
s

Anaheim
Canyon

Coro
na

 -

Nor
th 

Main

Sylmar/
San Fernando

Bu
rb

an
k A

irp
or

t -

So
uth

 (V
C Li

ne
)*

Com
merc

e

Mon
teb

ell
o/

Com
merc

e

Jur
up

a V
all

ey/

Pe
dle

y

Su
n V

all
ey

Onta
rio

 - E
as

t

Ind
ust

ry
Po

mon
a -

Dow
nto

wn

Coro
na

 - W
est

Pla
ce

nti
a

Fut
ure

 Sta
tion

Lancaster

Palmdale

Vincent Grade/
Acton

Via Princessa

Santa Clarita

Newhall

Perris - South

Bu
rb

an
k A

irp
or

t - 

Nor
th 

(AV Li
ne

)

Perris -
Downtown

Moreno Valley/
March Field

Riverside-
Hunter Park/
UCR

SAN BERNARDINO
CO.

RIVERSIDE
CO.

SAN DIEGO
CO.

LOS ANGELES
CO.

PACI F IC  O CEAN

VENTURA
CO.

ORANGE
CO.

L.A
. U

nio
n S

tat
ion

METROLINK COMMUTER RAIL SYSTEM

N
MAP NOT TO SCALE

metrolinktrains.com

Oceanside to Escondido
Sprinter

Oceanside to San Diego
Coaster

LAX FlyAway Bus

Metro Rail/Metro Bus

Amtrak Pacific Surfliner

Multiple Lines
Station Served by

Formerly San Bernardino Station** 
Formerly Burbank/Bob Hope Airport Station* 

Under Construction
Future Station

91/Perris Valley Line

Ventura County Line

San Bernardino Line

Riverside Line

Orange County Line

Inland Empire-Orange County Line

Antelope Valley Line

Univ
ers

ity

Dow
nto

wn R
ed

lan
ds

 

Esr
i 

Tip
pe

ca
no

eSa
n B

ern
ard

ino
 - D

ow
nto

wn

Sa
n B

ern
ard

ino
 D

ep
ot*

*

Ria
lto

Fo
nta

na

Ra
nc

ho
 C

uc
am

on
ga

Upla
nd

Mon
tcl

air

Clar
em

on
t

Po
mon

a -
 N

or
th

Cov
ina

Ba
ldw

in 
Pa

rk

El 
Mon

te

Cal 
Sta

te 
L.A

.

Future Stations Under Construction



   

x 
 

 

 
 

This page intentionally left blank  



   

xi 
 

 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

As of June 30, 2022 

MEMBERS  ALTERNATES 

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro) 

Ara Najarian (Chair) 
Council Member 
City of Glendale 
Metro Board  

 Walter Allen III* 
Council Member 
City of Covina 
Metro Appointee 
 

Kathyrn Barger 
Supervisor, 5th District 
Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors 
Metro Board  
 

 Roxana Martinez* 
Metro Appointee 
 

Paul Krekorian  
Council Member, 2nd District 
City of Los Angeles 
Metro Board  
 

 Pam O’Connor* 
Metro Appointee 

Hilda Solis 
Supervisor, 1st District 
Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors 
Metro Board 

 Maria Morales* 
Metro Appointee 
 

San Bernardino County Transportation Authority (SBCTA) 

Larry McCallon (Vice-Chair) 
Mayor Pro Tem 
City of Highland 
SBCTA Board 
 

 Javier “John” Dutrey* 
Mayor 
City of Montclair 
SBCTA Board 

Alan D. Wapner 
Mayor Pro Tem 
City of Ontario 
SBCTA Board 

 Ray Marquez* 
Vice Mayor 
City of Chino Hills 
SBCTA Board 
 

Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) 

Doug Chaffee (2nd Vice-Chair) 
Supervisor, 4th District 
Orange County Board of Supervisors 
OCTA Board  
 

 Vacant 

Mark Murphy 
Mayor 
City of Orange 
OCTA Board 
 

 Tam Nguyen* 
Citizen Representative 
City of Orange 
OCTA Board 

 

   



   

xii 
 

 

This page intentionally left blank



   

xiii 
 

 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

As of June 30, 2022 

MEMBERS  ALTERNATES 

Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 

Brian Berkson 
Council Member 
City of Jurupa Valley 
RCTC Board  
 

 Jeff Hewitt* 
Supervisor, 5th District 
Riverside County Board of Supervisors 
RCTC Board 
 

Karen Spiegel 
Supervisor, 2nd District 
Riverside County Board of Supervisors 
RCTC Board  
 
 

 Lisa Middleton* 
Mayor Pro Tem 
City of Palm Springs 
RCTC Board 
 

Ventura County Transportation Commission (VCTC) 

Tony Trembley 
Council Member 
City of Camarillo 
VCTC Board 

 Daniel Chavez* 
Citizen Representative 
VCTC Board 

 
 

Ex-Officio Members 

San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG):  

Joe Mosca 
Council Member 
City of Encinitas 
SANDAG Representative 

  Kellie Hinze* 
Council Member 
City of Encinitas 
SANDAG Representative 

Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG):  

Art Brown 
Mayor 
City of Buena Park 

   

State of California:  

Tony Tavares 
District Director,  
Caltrans District 7 

 Paul Marquez 
Deputy District Director for Planning,  
Caltrans District 7 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



   

xiv 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank



   

xv 
 

 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY 
MANAGEMENT TEAM 

As of June 30, 2022 

 

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM 

 

Chief Executive Officer  Darren Kettle 

Chief of Staff  Noelia Rodriguez 

Chief Safety, Security, & Compliance Officer 
 Frank Castellon-

Elliott 

Chief Financial Officer  Arnold Hackett 

Chief Operating Officer  Don Filippi 

Chief Program Delivery  Justin Fornelli 

Chief Strategy Officer  Paul Hubler 

Interim, Chief Customer Experience Officer  Monica Bouldin 

Interim Chief Technology Officer  Arun Chakladar 

Chief People Officer  Ilyssa DeCasperis 

LEGAL COUNSEL 

General Counsel  Don Del Rio 

Associate General Counsel  Geoffrey Forgione 

Senior Counsel, Risk Manager  William Garrett 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

Senior Manager, Audit  Elisabeth Lazuardi 

 
  



   

xvi 
 

 

This page intentionally left blank



   

xvii 
 

 

  



   

xviii 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank  



Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of 
Achievement
for Excellence

in Financial 
Reporting

Presented to

Southern California Regional Rail Authority

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2021

Executive Director/CEO

xix



   

xx 
 

 
 

 

This page intentionally left blank



   

xxi 
 

 
 

  
 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
 

Our mission is to provide safe, efficient, dependable and on-
time transportation service that offers outstanding customer 

experience and enhances quality of life. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Our Vision 
 

Create Value and Exceed Expectations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Our Vision Statement 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Directors 

Southern California Regional Rail Authority 

Los Angeles, California 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Southern California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA) as of 

and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, 

which collectively comprise SCRRA’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 

respects, the financial position of SCRRA, as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in financial 

position, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of SCRRA 

and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 

relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Adoption of New Accounting Standard 

As discussed in Notes 1 and 13 to the financial statements, SCRRA has adopted the provisions of 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases, for the years ended  

June 30, 2022 and 2021. Accordingly, a restatement has been made to the net position as of July 1, 

2020, to restate beginning net position. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 

design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 

or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about SCRRA’s ability to continue as 

a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 

information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 

assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 

Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 

individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 

the financial statements.  

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such

procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of SCRRA’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is

expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,

that raise substantial doubt about SCRRA’s ability to continue as a going concern for a

reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related 

matters that we identified during the audit.  
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Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 

discussion and analysis, basis for condition measurement under the modified approach for 

infrastructure, schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios, schedule of pension 

contributions, schedules of changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios, and schedule of OPEB 

contributions, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the 

responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 

the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 

reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 

historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 

information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 

which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 

comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 

financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 

statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 

limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 

assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise SCRRA’s basic financial statements. The schedule of unearned revenue and 

advances on capital purchases is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part 

of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 

from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 

financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 

of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 

such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 

financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 

the schedule of unearned revenue and advances on capital purchases is fairly stated, in all material 

respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other 

information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial 

statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the basic financial statements does not 

cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and 

the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 

based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other 

information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31, 

2023, on our consideration of SCRRA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 

matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 

financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 

effectiveness of SCRRA’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 

integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 

SCRRA’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Rancho Cucamonga, California 

January 31, 2023 
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INTRODUCTION 
 
The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance and activity of Southern 
California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA) is offered to the reader to provide an introduction to and 
understanding of the basic financial statements of SCRRA for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 
2021.  This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is presented in conjunction with the 
letter of transmittal, the basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and statistical 
information. 

The basic financial statements include (1) the Balance Sheets, (2) the Statements of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position, (3) the Statements of Cash Flows, and (4) Notes to the Basic 
Financial Statements.  The basic financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB). 

The Balance Sheets provide information about the nature and amounts of investments in assets, 
liabilities, and deferred outflows and inflows of resources of SCRRA, with the residual of these 
elements being reported as net position. 

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position provide information about 
SCRRA’s changes in net position and account for the current year’s revenues and expenses.  The 
statements present SCRRA’s operations during the period, which can be used to determine how the 
agency funded its costs. 

The Statements of Cash Flows provide information about SCRRA’s cash receipts, disbursements, and 
net changes in cash resulting from operating, financing, and investing activities. 

The notes to the basic financial statements provide information that is essential to understanding the 
financial statements, such as SCRRA’s accounting methods and policies, details of cash and 
investments, employee benefits, lease transactions, and future commitments and contingencies of the 
Authority and information about other events or developing situations that could materially affect 
SCRRA’s financial position. 

The required supplementary information provides details concerning SCRRA’s infrastructure assets 
and progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its 
employees. 

The supplementary information provides additional detail about unearned revenue and advances on 
capital purchases by Member Agencies. 

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 

SCRRA is an independent entity created in August 1991 through a joint exercise of powers agreement 
(JPA).  SCRRA began operating the “Metrolink” regional commuter rail system in October 1992.  As 
part of the JPA, the Member Agencies (Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority 
[LACMTA], Orange County Transportation Authority [OCTA], Riverside County Transportation 
Commission [RCTC], San Bernardino County Transportation Authority [SBCTA], and Ventura 
County Transportation Commission [VCTC]) acquired the rail network in existence at the time the 
JPA was established for use in Metrolink’s commuter rail operations.  This initial railroad network is 
not included in SCRRA’s railroad network capital assets as the Member Agencies retain title and 
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ownership of those assets.  As part of the JPA, however, SCRRA is responsible for related 
maintenance and operation of members’ assets and rail right-of-way used in its operations. 

In addition, certain members retain responsibility to maintain segments of their railroad network.  
Metrolink’s railroad network consists of capital assets created as a result of new capital construction 
and major capital improvement projects.  Currently there are 538 route miles with 62 stations in the 
Metrolink system throughout Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, Ventura, and San 
Diego counties. 

The governing body of SCRRA is a Board of Directors comprised of 11 members appointed by the 
voting members of the JPA.  The Member Agencies with their respective number of votes are as 
follows: 

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA)  4 
Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA)    2 
Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC)    2 
San Bernardino County Transportation Authority (SBCTA)   2 
Ventura County Transportation Commission (VCTC)    1 

SCRRA is not considered to be a component unit of any other reporting entity. 

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following sections discuss the significant changes in SCRRA’s financial position for the fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2022, June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020.  An analysis of major economic factors 
and industry trends that have contributed to these changes is provided.  For purposes of the MD&A, 
summaries of the financial statements and various exhibits presented are in conformance with 
SCRRA’s financial statements.  For more information regarding SCRRA’s capital assets, please refer 
to Note 4 of the Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

2022 2021 2020
Current assets  $       181,358 11%  $       197,409 11%  $       182,024 11%
Capital assets, net 1,406,982 84% 1,400,829 81% 1,393,198 85%
Other noncurrent assets 81,627 4% 117,067 7% 55,847 3%

  Total assets 1,669,967 1,715,305 1,631,069
Deferred outflows of resources 8,854 1% 8,803 1% 12,885 1%
Total assets and deferred  
   outflows of resources  $    1,678,821 100%  $    1,724,108 100%  $    1,643,954 100%
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The following is more detailed information about SCRRA’s capital assets:

ASSET TYPE 2022 2021 2020

Land, easements, and infrastructure assets  $        676,117 48%  $        676,117 48%  $        676,117 48%

Construction in progress 42,173 3% 124,165 9% 108,842 8%

   Total non-depreciable capital assets 718,290 51% 800,282 57% 784,959 56%

Rolling stock, net 461,386 33% 371,536 27% 371,408 26%

Building and improvements, net 77,914 6% 68,795 5% 79,489 6%

Positive train control, net 16,222 1% 20,508 1% 28,737 2%

Infrastructure assets 98,269 7% 105,259 8% 106,984 8%

Other, net 34,901 2% 34,449 2% 21,621 2%

   Total depreciable capital assets, net 688,692 49% 600,547 43% 608,239 44%

Total capital assets, net $   1,406,982 100% $   1,400,829 100% $   1,393,198 100%

 
 
Fiscal Year 2022 Compared to 2021.  At June 30, 2022, net capital assets totaled $1,407.0 million 
and were $6.1 million or 0.43% higher than the prior year.  This increase was primarily due to $82.0 
million lower construction in progress (CIP) that was partly offset by $88.1 million net impact of 
higher depreciable asset base and depreciation. The decrease in CIP can be attributed to final 
acceptance of 34 Tier 4 locomotives that were placed in service.  The increase in depreciation can be 
attributed to higher building, rolling stock, facility, and station platform expenses as well as 
retirement of assets such as computer, other equipment, and support vehicles. 
 
Fiscal Year 2021 Compared to 2020.  At June 30, 2021, net capital assets totaled $1,400.8 million 
and were $7.6 million or 0.55% higher than the prior year.  This increase was primarily due to $16.7 
million higher leases due to implementation of GASB87, a $15.3 million increase in the additions of 
construction in progress (CIP), and $1.7 million increase in infrastructure assets.  These were offset 
by a $10.6 million decrease in Buildings and improvements, $8.2 million decrease in PTC assets, and 
$8.2 million decrease in depreciation.  The increase of $15.3 million in CIP was due primarily from 
projects such as $4.0 million in bombardier railcar overhaul to extend useful life, $3.0 million in 
Redlands passenger rail, $2.5 million in data security network, $1.7 million in tier 4 locomotive 
design and build process, $1.3 million in station surveillance systems, and $1.3 million in earthquake 
early warning and positive train control integration.  The decrease in building and improvements can 
be attributed to net impact of $6.1 million retirement of the Inland Empire Maintenance Facility and 
the $6.6 million retirement of positive train control onboard equipment. 
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2022 2021 2020

Current liabilities  $     200,424 79%  $     253,744 81%  $     187,643 83%
Noncurrent liabilities 37,157 15% 52,798 17% 35,568 16%
Total liabilities 237,581 306,542 223,211
Deferred inflows of resources 14,825 6% 6,078 2% 3,495 2%

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of 
     resources  $     252,406 100%  $     312,620 100%  $     226,706 100%

TOTAL LIABILITIES DISTINGUISHED BETWEEN CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT 
LIABILITIES, AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (in thousands)

 
The following is more detailed information about liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by type: 
 

2022 2021 2020

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $        92,849 37%  $        75,470 24%  $      84,657 37%

Advances for construction and retention 
        payable

16,670 7% 14,140 5% 26,128 12%

Unearned revenue 85,508 34% 158,290 51% 72,359 32%
Other current liabilities 379 0% 1,141 0% 1,479 1%
Compensated absences 5,543 2% 5,520 2% 4,917 2%
Net pension liability 6,253 2% 15,841 5% 13,100 6%
Lease liability 14,670 6% 15,620 5% 433 0%
Other postemployment benefits liability 8,291 3% 13,650 4% 14,327 6%
Claims and judgments payable 7,418 3% 6,870 2% 5,811 3%
Total liabilities 237,581 306,542 223,211
Deferred inflows of resources 14,825 6% 6,078 2% 3,495 2%
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of
        resources  $       252,406 100%  $       312,620 100%  $    226,706 100%

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES BY 
TYPE (in thousands)

 
 
Fiscal Year 2022 Compared to 2021.  At June 30, 2022, total liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources equaled $252.4 million and were $60.2 million or 19.3% lower than the prior year.  This 
decrease was primarily due to $72.8 million lower unearned revenue as a result of lower subsidies, 
$9.6 million lower net pension liability, $5.4 million lower other postemployment benefits liability, 
and $0.9 million lower lease liability. These decreases were partly offset by $17.4 million higher 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities due to increased train operation activities and $2.5 million 
higher advances for construction and retention payable associated with increased maintenance, safety, 
operations and rehabilitation projects with other agencies. 
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Fiscal Year 2021 Compared to 2020.  At June 30, 2021, total liabilities and deferred inflows 
of resources equaled $312.6 million and were $85.9 million or 37.9% higher than the prior 
year.  This increase was primarily due to $85.9 million higher unearned revenue as a result of 
economic relief funds received from the federal government on behalf of member agencies, 
$3.3 million higher compensated absences and net pension liability and $1.1 higher claims 
and judgment as a result of SCRRA’s periodic review of risk exposures.   These increases 
were partly offset by $12.0 million lower advances for construction and retention payable 
associated with fewer maintenance, safety, operations and rehabilitation projects with other 
agencies and $9.2 million lower accounts payable and accrued expenses due to reduced train 
operations.

2022 2021 2020

Net investment in capital assets $   1,392,312 98% $   1,385,209 98% $   1,392,765 98%

Unrestricted 34,103 2% 26,279 2% 24,483 2%

   Total net position $   1,426,415 100% $   1,411,488 100% $   1,417,248 100%

TOTAL NET POSITION DISTINGUISHED BETWEEN AMOUNTS INVESTED IN
 CAPITAL AND UNRESTRICTED (in thousands)

 
Total net position this year increased by $14.9 million, or 1.06% higher from the prior year primarily 
due to changes in capital assets attributable to transfer and placement of assets into service from 
construction in progress. 
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2022 2021 2020

Operating revenues and expenses:
   Operating revenues  $        66,160  $         48,393  $       104,040 
   Operating expenses 398,119 351,816 384,011

Operating loss      (   331,959)      (   303,423)      (   279,971)

Non-operating revenues and expenses:
   Subsidies and grants 212,094 94,593 162,395 
   Net (loss) gain in fair value of investments (948) (181) 119 
   Interest income 30 25 110 
   Interest expense (656) (629) (7)
   Net gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 36 (10,003) (2,387)

Total non-operating revenues, net 210,556 83,805 160,230 

Loss before capital grants and subsidies (121,403) (219,618) (119,741)

Capital grants and subsidies 136,330 213,858 178,785 

Change in net position 14,927 (5,760) 59,044 
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 1,411,488 1,417,248 1,358,204 

Net position, end of year  $    1,426,415  $    1,411,488  $    1,417,248 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (in thousands)
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The following information is about revenues and expenses by major source: 

2022 2021 2020
Revenues:
   Fares  $     28,136  $       16,224  $       63,152 
   Other operating revenues 38,024 32,169 40,888
   Grants and subsidies 348,424 308,451 341,180
   Other non-operating revenues 30 25 110

Total revenues  $   414,614  $     356,869  $     445,330 

Expenses:
   Train operations  $   176,537  $     176,780  $     187,647 
   Maintenance-of-way 54,295 44,411 44,248
   Rehabilitation and renovation - capital 84,666 49,900 67,550
   Other operating expenses 82,621 80,725 84,566
   Non-operating expenses 1,568 10,813 2,261

Total expenses  $   399,687  $     362,629  $     386,272 

REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY MAJOR SOURCE (in thousands)

 
Fiscal Year 2022 Compared to 2021: At June 30, 2022, revenues totaled $414.6 million and were 
$57.7 million or 16.2% higher than the prior year.  This increase was primarily due to $40.0 million 
higher grants, $11.9 million higher fare revenues from operations, and $5.9 million higher other 
operating revenues derived from operations and rehabilitation services that SCRRA performed on 
behalf of other agencies.  Fare revenue significantly increased by $11.9 million, or 73.4% from the 
prior year as more employees return to offices and businesses start to return to normal operations after 
two years of economic downturn as a result of the pandemic.  

Expenses totaled $399.7 million and were $37.1 million or 10.2% higher than the prior year.  This 
increase was due to $34.7 million higher capital and rehabilitation expenses, $9.9 million higher train 
operation expenses as a result of service restoration, and $1.8 million higher other operating expenses 
related to third party agreement construction projects and public liability/property damage insurance 
that were partly offset by $9.2 million lower non-operating expenses related to retirement of assets 
and changes in net fair value of investments and $1.2 million lower train operations-related leases and 
rentals.   

Fiscal Year 2021 Compared to 2020: At June 30, 2021, revenues totaled $356.9 million and were 
$88.5 million or 19.8% lower than the prior year.  This decrease was primarily due to $46.9 million 
lower fare revenues from operations, $32.2 million lower member agency subsidies and grants, and 
$8.7 million lower other operating revenues derived from operations and rehabilitation services that 
SCRRA performed on behalf of other agencies.  Fare revenue significantly decreased by $46.9 
million, or 74.3% from the prior year due to the coronavirus pandemic that adversely impacted 
ridership throughout the whole fiscal year.   
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Expenses totaled $362.6 million and were $23.6 million or 7.3% lower than the prior year.  This 
decrease was due to $17.7 million lower capital and rehabilitation expenses, $10.9 million lower train 
operation expenses due to reduced operations, and $3.8 million lower other operating expenses related 
to third party agreement construction projects and public liability/property damage insurance that 
were partly offset by $8.5 million higher non-operating expenses related to retirement of assets and 
changes in net fair value of investments.  

CAPITAL ASSETS 

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS – MODIFIED APPROACH 

SCRRA elected to use the modified approach in reporting its railroad network (track, tunnel and 
bridge structures, and signals and communications).  Under the modified approach, infrastructure 
assets that are part of a network or subsystem of a network are not required to be depreciated as long 
as two requirements are met.  The first requirement is that the infrastructure assets are managed 
through a qualified asset management system.  The second requirement is that the infrastructure be 
maintained at (or above) a government-established condition level.   

As promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, a full condition assessment must 
be performed on all infrastructure assets every three years in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles.  SCRRA has elected to create a Metrolink Rehabilitation Plan (MRP), which 
thoroughly assesses the condition of SCRRA’s key infrastructure assets to confirm that they are at a 
State of Good Repair (SOGR).  The modified approach is disclosed in more detail in the 
accompanying basic financial statements and required supplementary information. 

Management seeks to maintain infrastructure above the minimum required level approved by the 
Board and above minimum standards required by the Federal Railroad Administration.  In FY 2022, 
SCRRA estimated the amount needed to maintain or preserve the infrastructure asset to be $99.0 
million. Actual expenses were $97.0 million.  In FY 2021, SCRRA estimated the amount needed to 
maintain or preserve the infrastructure asset to be $54.3 million. Actual expenses were $58.3 
million.  See Required Supplementary Information, Note 1 for more information. 

OVERALL FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND IMPORTANT 
ECONOMIC CONDITIONS 

The FY 2022 budget included $397.1 million in new and outstanding project authorization, with 
$283.0 million allocated to rehabilitation projects and $159.1 million allocated to new capital 
projects.  SCRRA is responsible for ensuring the overall safety and dependable performance of its 
railroad network asset, the right-of-way, and everything that travels upon it.  Projects are selected 
based on the principle of keeping infrastructure assets in a state of good repair to maximize safety by 
minimizing and managing risks associated with network system failure.  

SCRRA continued to experience lower ridership throughout FY22 as a result of the Covid-19 
pandemic.  Metrolink’s ridership increased by approximately 83% compared with prior year.  During 
FY22, ridership recovered approximately 31% of riders compared with pre-pandemic levels. 
Ridership is expected to be challenged as office workers return to work on hybrid schedule with peak 
weekday travel observed during midweek. Revenues are expected to continue to be impacted and may 
result in an annual funding shortfall.  
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SCRRA continues to position itself to ride out a long recovery in transit ridership as a result of the 
pandemic. While public transportation is on the decline, there’s evidence that more people opt to 
drive their cars to work and other activities than ride public transportation. To attract riders back, 
SCRRA restored approximately 90 % of its services and offered flexible and discounted fares.  
  
 
CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS, DECISIONS, OR CONDITIONS 

FY 2023 ADOPTED BUDGET 

The FY 2023 budget includes $565.9 million in new and outstanding project authority.  Of this 
amount, $358.1 million is allocated to rehabilitation projects and $207.8 million is allocated to new 
capital projects. 

MEASURE M 

On November 8, 2016, Los Angeles County voters approved Measure M, a half-cent transportation 
sales tax measure placed on the ballot by the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation 
Authority (Metro) Board of Directors.  This measure calls for a sustained funding approach for a 
variety of transit and highway projects, roadway improvements, pedestrian and bike paths, paratransit 
services for the disabled, and affordable fares for seniors.  The passage of Measure M will provide 
billions of dollars for commuter rail and transit operations, and projects to keep buses, trains, and 
facilities in good repair.  Metrolink will receive up to 2% of this half-cent sales tax over the life of the 
measure. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of SCRRA’s finances for all those 
with an interest.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for 
additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, Southern 
California Regional Rail Authority, 900 Wilshire Boulevard Suite 1500, Los Angeles, CA 90017. 
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY
Balance Sheets

June 30, 2022 and 2021
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

2022 2021
Assets and deferred outflows of resources:

Current assets:
Cash and investments 59,582$               90,150$               
Fuel hedge and other assets 13,766 10,081 
Due from other agencies, net of allowance for uncollectible

 accounts of $145 and $625, respectively 87,671 75,441 
Prepaid expenses 506 582 
Trade and other receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible

 accounts of $12 and $4,895, respectively 3,097 2,555 
Inventory 16,736 18,600 

Total current assets 181,358               197,409               

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments 81,627 117,067               
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable 718,290               800,282               
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation of
   $555,573 and $515,649, respectively 688,692               600,547               

Total noncurrent assets 1,488,609            1,517,896            

Total assets 1,669,967            1,715,305            

Deferred outflows from pension 6,188 5,960 
Deferred outflows from OPEB 2,666 2,843 

Total deferred outflows of resources 8,854 8,803 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 1,678,821$          1,724,108$          

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 92,849$               75,470$               
Advances for construction 13,482 12,077 
Retention payable 3,188 2,063 
Unearned revenue and advances on capital purchases 85,508 158,290               
Other current liabilities 379 1,141 
Compensated absences 2,199 2,153 
Claims and judgments payable 1,800 1,600 
Lease liability 1,019 950 

Total current liabilities 200,424               253,744               

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 6,253 15,841 
Lease liability 13,651 14,670 
Net other postemployment benefits liability 8,291 13,650 
Compensated absences 3,344 3,367 
Claims and judgments payable 5,618 5,270 

Total noncurrent liabilities 37,157 52,798 

Total liabilities 237,581               306,542               

Deferred inflows from fuel hedge 257 3,260 
Deferred inflows from pension 8,328 237 
Deferred inflows from OPEB 6,240 2,581 

Total deferred inflows of resources 14,825 6,078 
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 1,392,312            1,385,209            
Unrestricted 34,103 26,279 

Total net position 1,426,415            1,411,488            
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position 1,678,821$          1,724,108$          

 See accompanying notes to  basic financial statements.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

2022 2021
Operating revenues:

Fares 28,136$               16,224$               
Dispatching 2,155 2,079
Third-party agreements 22,934 17,436
Maintenance of way 11,512 11,545
Public liability and property damage recovery 980 817
Miscellaneous 443 292

Total operating revenues 66,160 48,393

Operating expenses:
Train operations 176,537               176,780               
Maintenance-of-way 54,295 44,411
Rehabilitation and renovation - capital 84,666 49,900
Third-party agreements 23,019 17,687
Insurance 12,857 12,450
Provision for claims, judgments and other 2,790 6,838
Public liability and property damage 1,739 1,572
Depreciation 42,216 42,178

Total operating expenses 398,119               351,816               

Operating loss (331,959)              (303,423)              

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Subsidies and grants - trains and maintenance of way 195,254               79,751
Subsidies and grants - public liability and property damage 16,840 14,842
Net change in fair value of investments (948) (181) 
Interest income 30 25
Interest expense (656) (629) 
Net gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 36 (10,003) 

Total non-operating revenues, net 210,556               83,805

Loss before capital grants and subsidies (121,403)              (219,618)              

Capital grants and subsidies 136,330               213,858               

Change in net position 14,927 (5,760) 

Net position at beginning of year, as restated 1,411,488            1,417,248            

Net position at end of year 1,426,415$          1,411,488$          

 See accompanying notes to  basic financial statements.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY
Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from fares 27,939$               16,686$               
Cash received from dispatching and maintenance of way 13,375 14,989
Cash received from third-party agreements and public liability and property damage 9,924 10,021
Cash paid to employees (50,644) (39,888) 
Cash paid to suppliers (273,681)              (250,513)              
Cash paid to / received from miscellaneous sources 443 292
Sale / maturity of fuel hedge (3,684) (6,012) 

Net cash used in operating activities (276,328)              (254,425)              

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating subsidies and grants - trains and maintenance of way 145,441               163,286               
Operating subsidies and grants - public liability and property damage 16,840 14,842

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 162,281               178,128               

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital grants and subsidies received 99,471 243,699               
Construction and purchases of capital assets (48,852) (59,814) 
Cash paid for lease liabilities - principal portion (950) (929) 
Cash paid for lease liabilities - interest portion (656) (629) 

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 49,013 182,327               

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net change in cash equivalents (26) 73
Sale / maturity of investments (948) (181) 

Net cash used by investing activities (974) (108) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments (66,008) 105,922               

Cash and investments at beginning of year 207,217               101,295               

Cash and investments at end of year 141,209$             207,217$             

Reconciliation to cash and investments on the Balance Sheets:
Cash and investments 59,582$               90,150$               
Restricted cash and investments 81,627 117,067               

Total cash and investments on the Balance Sheet 141,209$             207,217$             

 See accompanying notes to  basic financial statements.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY
Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

2022 2021
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Operating loss (331,959)$            (303,423)$            
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

used in operating activities:
Depreciation 42,216 42,178

(Increase) decrease in:
  Sale / maturity of fuel hedge (3,684) (6,012) 
 Due from other agencies 2,781 1,975
 Prepaid expenses 76 26
 Trade and other receivables, net (543) 1,823
 Inventory 1,864 (2,216) 

Increase (decrease) in:
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 17,379 (9,187) 
 Compensated absences 23 603
 Advances for construction 1,408 (2,907) 
 Claims and judgments payable 549 1,060
 Unearned revenue 2 (2,803) 
 Other post employment benefits (5,359) (677) 
 Other liabilities (4,482) 15,436
Fuel Hedge and related changes in deferred outflows
and inflows of resources (3,003) 8,134
Net pension liability and related changes in 

deferred outflows and inflows of resources 2,922 1,630
Changes in deferred outflows

 and inflows of resources related to OPEB 3,482 (65) 

Total adjustments 55,631 48,998 

Net cash used in operating activities (276,328)$            (254,425)$            

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Net gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 36 (10,003) 
Lease liability for the acquisition of a right to use leased asset 15,620

 See accompanying notes to  basic financial statements.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The basic financial statements of the Southern California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA) have been prepared 
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental entities.  
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  SCRRA’s significant accounting policies are 
described below. 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 

In June 1990, the California Legislature enacted Senate Bill 1402, Chapter 4 of Division 12 of the Public 
Utilities Code.  This bill required the transportation commissions of the Counties of Los Angeles, Orange, 
Riverside, San Bernardino, and Ventura to jointly develop a plan for regional transit services within the 
multi-county region.  The Southern California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA) was established on August 
1, 1991 through a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JPA) among the following public agencies (Member 
Agencies): 

 Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) 
 Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) 
 Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
 San Bernardino County Transportation Authority (SBCTA) 
 Ventura County Transportation Commission (VCTC) 

SCRRA’s independent governing Board consists of 11 members appointed by the Member Agencies, as 
follows: 

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority 4 
Orange County Transportation Authority  2 
Riverside County Transportation Commission  2 
San Bernardino County Transportation Authority 2 
Ventura County Transportation Commission  1 

The purpose of SCRRA is to plan, design, construct, and administer the operation of regional commuter rail 
lines serving the counties of Los Angeles (L.A.), Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, Ventura, and northern 
San Diego.  The operation of the commuter rail lines is referred to as Metrolink.  Its services include the 
operation of seven commuter rail passenger lines, as follows: 

 San Bernardino Line – running from San Bernardino to L.A. Union Station 
 Antelope Valley Line – running from Lancaster to L.A. Union Station 
 Ventura County, Burbank Airport/Downtown Line – running from Oxnard to L.A. Union Station 
 Orange County Line – running from Oceanside to L.A. Union Station 
 Inland Empire-Orange County Line – running from San Bernardino to Oceanside 
 91/Perris Valley Line – running from South Perris to L.A. Union Station via Fullerton 
 Riverside Line – running from Riverside to L.A. Union Station via City of Industry 

Passenger fares, dispatching and maintenance-of-way revenues, Member Agency operating and capital 
subsidies, and State and federal grant programs fund the SCRRA.  The Member Agencies and other public 
entities provide transportation within the counties served by SCRRA.  SCRRA is not considered a 
component unit of any other reporting entity.  As required by U.S. GAAP, the accompanying basic financial 
statements include all financial activities of SCRRA. 
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In accordance with GAAP, SCRRA has considered all potential organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationships with SCRRA are such that exclusion would cause SCRRA’s financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete.  The GASB has established criteria to be considered in 
determining financial accountability.  These criteria include appointing the majority of an organization’s 
governing body and (1) the ability of SCRRA to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for 
that organization to provide specific benefits or impose specific financial burdens on SCRRA.  Based on 
these criteria, there are no other organizations or agencies that should be included in these basic financial 
statements. 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis 
of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. 

The accompanying basic financial statements of SCRRA have been prepared in conformity with GAAP as 
promulgated by GASB, the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. 

C. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions.  These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and 
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.  In addition, estimates affect the reported amount of 
revenues and expenses.  Actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions. 

D. Effects of New Accounting Pronouncements 

SCRRA adopted the following GASB statements in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022: 

GASB Statement No. 87 

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases.  The objective of this Statement is to better meet the 
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by 
governments.  This Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that 
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of 
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.  It establishes a single model for lease accounting 
based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.  Under 
this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and 
a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the 
relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.  This Statement is effective 
for periods beginning after June 15, 2021.  As a part of this implementation, prior period statements were 
affected.  On July 1, 2020, the Authority recognized a right to use asset of $16.6 million and a lease liability 
of $16.6 million.   

The following issued, but not yet effective GASB statements are being reviewed by management: 

GASB Statement No. 94 

In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94 Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and 
Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial 
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). 
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As used in this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with an 
operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the 
right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP 
asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Some PPPs meet the definition of a 
service concession arrangement (SCA), which the Board defines in this Statement as a PPP in which (1) the 
operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties; (2) the transferor determines or has the 
ability to modify or approve which services the operator is required to provide, to whom the operator is 
required to provide the services, and the prices or rates that can be charged for the services; and (3) the 
transferor is entitled to significant residual interest in the service utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end 
of the arrangement.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2022.  This Statement is not expected to have a significant impact on SCRRA. 

GASB Statement No. 96 

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96 Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements.  
This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based 
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This Statement (1) 
defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible 
asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other 
than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures 
regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established 
in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2022.   

GASB Statement No. 99 

In April 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 99 Standards of Governmental Accounting and Financial 
Reporting.  The primary objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and 
financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (a) practice issues 
that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (b) 
accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees.   

The requirements related to extension of the use of LIBOR, accounting for SNAP distributions, disclosures 
of nonmonetary transactions, pledges of future revenues by pledging governments, clarification of certain 
provisions in Statement 34, as amended, and terminology updates related to Statement 53 and Statement 63 
are effective upon issuance. 

The requirements related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2022, and all reporting periods thereafter. 

The requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative 
instruments within the scope of Statement 53 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023, and 
all reporting periods thereafter. 

GASB Statement No. 100 

In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 100 Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. The primary 
objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting 
changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable 
information for making decisions or assessing accountability. 
 
This Statement defines accounting changes as changes in accounting principles, changes in accounting 
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estimates, and changes to or within the financial reporting entity and describes the transactions or other 
events that constitute those changes. As part of those descriptions, for (1) certain changes in accounting 
principles and (2) certain changes in accounting estimates that result from a change in measurement 
methodology, a new principle or methodology should be justified on the basis that it is preferable to the 
principle or methodology used before the change. That preferability should be based on the qualitative 
characteristics of financial reporting—understandability, reliability, relevance, timeliness, consistency, and 
comparability. This Statement also addresses corrections of errors in previously issued financial statements. 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for accounting changes and error corrections made in fiscal 
years beginning after June 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. 

GASB Statement No. 101 

In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 101 Compensated Absences.  This Statement requires that 
liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not been used and (2) leave that has 
been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means. A liability should be recognized for 
leave that has not been used if (a) the leave is attributable to services already rendered, (b) the leave 
accumulates, and (c) the leave is more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or 
settled through noncash means. Leave is attributable to services already rendered when an employee has 
performed the services required to earn the leave. Leave that accumulates is carried forward from the 
reporting period in which it is earned to a future reporting period during which it may be used for time off or 
otherwise paid or settled. In estimating the leave that is more likely than not to be used or otherwise paid or 
settled, a government should consider relevant factors such as employment policies related to compensated 
absences and historical information about the use or payment of compensated absences. However, leave that 
is more likely than not to be settled through conversion to defined benefit postemployment benefits should 
not be included in a liability for compensated absences. 
 
This Statement requires that a liability for certain types of compensated absences—including parental leave, 
military leave, and jury duty leave—not be recognized until the leave commences. This Statement also 
requires that a liability for specific types of compensated absences not be recognized until the leave is used. 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and all 
reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position 

1. Cash and Investments 

Cash and investments consist of cash in demand deposit accounts and investments in the State 
Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), money market funds, and treasury reserves.  Note 2 
provides information about SCRRA’s deposits and investments, interest sensitive investments, and the 
credit quality of the investments held at year-end.  Investments are presented at fair value.  

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, amounts in demand deposits, and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date acquired by SCRRA. 

2. Restricted Cash and Investments 

Restricted cash and investments represent advanced funds received whereby constraints have been either 
(1) imposed by the creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments or (2) 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
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3. Due from Other Agencies and Trade Receivables 

SCRRA establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts, which reflects a reasonable estimate of accounts 
receivable that management deems uncollectible.  Using the June 30th final accounts receivable aging 
report, SCRRA calculates a reserve balance equal to 50% of aged receivable amounts that are over 120 
days outstanding.  

 
4. Prepaid Expenses 

Payments made to vendors for expenses that will benefit future periods beyond the fiscal year end are 
recorded as prepaid expenses. 
 

5. Inventory 

Inventory consists of railroad operating spare parts that are recorded when purchased and expensed when 
used.  SCRRA maintains inventory for rolling stock, track, and signal maintenance.  SCRRA’s inventory 
is valued at cost. SCRRA continues to test its inventory for obsolescence and the reserve for 
obsolescence for FY22 was $6.6 million and for FY21 the reserve was $5.6 million. 
 

6. Capital Assets 

Capital assets reported by SCRRA include land, buildings, vehicles, rolling stock, equipment, right-of-
way easements, positive train control (PTC), fare collection equipment, and the Metrolink railroad 
network.  As part of the JPA, the Member Agencies acquired the rail network in existence at the time of 
the creation of the JPA for use in SCRRA’s commuter rail operations.  The initial railroad network is not 
included as part of Metrolink’s railroad network.  The Member Agencies retained title and ownership to 
those assets.  

As part of the JPA, SCRRA is responsible for the related maintenance and operation of members’ assets 
and rail right-of-way used in operations.  Additionally, certain agencies retain responsibility to maintain 
segments of their railroad network.  SCRRA’s railroad network consists of capital assets created as a 
result of new capital construction and major capital improvement projects and are recorded in the 
financial statements as SCRRA infrastructure.  Capital assets are defined by SCRRA as assets with an 
individual cost of at least $5,000 and a minimum useful life of greater than one year.  

Purchased or constructed capital assets are valued at cost where records are available and at estimated 
fair value where no records exist.  Assets donated to SCRRA are valued at acquisition value on the date 
received.  Costs related to the acquisition of easement rights are recorded as part of capital assets.  The 
cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the 
life of the asset are not capitalized. 

The Authority also records the value of intangible right to use assets based on the underlying leased asset 
in accordance with GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.  The right to use intangible asset is amortized each 
year for the term of the contract. 

Buildings and improvements, rolling stock, depreciable infrastructure/railroad network, vehicles, fare 
collection equipment, and computer and other equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method 
over the following useful lives: 
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Asset Description Useful Life 

Rolling stock 20-30 years 
New railroad network 20 years 
Fare collection systems and Positive Train Control 10 years 
Computer and other equipment 3-10 years 
Support vehicles 5-7 years 

 
 

SCRRA defines historical infrastructure and new railroad network as basic physical assets that allow 
SCRRA to function.  These assets constitute the Metrolink railroad network (tracks, tunnel and bridge 
structures, and communications signals).  The new railroad network assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis, using a useful life of 20 years.  On historical infrastructure, SCRRA has elected to use the 
modified approach as defined by GASB Statement No. 34. 

Pursuant to the modified approach to accounting for infrastructure assets, SCRRA has committed to 
preserving and maintaining its railroad network at an appropriate condition level as determined by the 
Board of Directors.  Consequently, no depreciation expense is reported for the capital assets comprising 
the historical railroad network, nor are amounts capitalized in connection with improvements that 
lengthen the lives of those capital assets, unless those improvements also increase their service capacity.  
SCRRA maintains an inventory of its railroad network infrastructure assets and performs periodic 
condition assessments to establish that the predetermined condition level is being maintained.  In 
addition, SCRRA makes annual estimates of the amount that must be expended to preserve and maintain 
the railroad network at the predetermined condition level. 

7. Leases 

A lessee should recognize a lease liability and a lease asset at the commencement of the lease term, unless 
the lease is a short-term lease, or it transfers ownership of the underlying asset.  The lease liability should 
be measured at the present value of payments expected to be made during the lease term (less any lease 
incentives).  The lease asset should be measured at the amount of the initial measurement of the lease 
liability, plus any payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term and certain 
direct costs. 

8. Compensated Absences 

Substantially all employees earn paid time-off (PTO) for vacation, illness, and certain other qualifying 
absences each pay period.  The number of hours accrued is generally based on length of service not to 
exceed three times an employee’s annual accrual.  When employees reach their maximum accrual 
balance, they will not continue to accrue PTO hours until their PTO accounts are below the maximum 
accrual balance.  A liability for compensated absences has been accrued in the accompanying basic 
financial statements. 

9. Unearned Revenue and Advances on Capital Construction 

Unearned revenues arise when SCRRA receives resources before it has a legal claim to them, such as 
when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of the qualifying expenses or when advances on 
capital construction are received.  In addition, Member Agencies contribute funds in advance for their 
annual operating subsidy.  In subsequent periods, when SCRRA has met all eligibility requirements, the 
liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet and the revenue is recognized.  
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10. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to 
pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of SCRRA’s California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan), and additions to/deductions from the 
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.  
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  The investments of the plan are reported at fair 
value.  
 

11. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense information about the fiduciary net position of the 
SCRRA Retiree Healthcare Plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan.  For this purpose, the 
Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  The 
investments of the plan are reported at fair value. 

 
12. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the balance sheet reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  
Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net assets that applies to future period(s) and 
so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until that time. 

In addition to liabilities, the balance sheet reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  
Deferred inflows of resources represent a consumption of net assets that applies to future period(s) and 
so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

13. Components of Net Position 

Net position is reported in one of three categories: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets – groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, into one 
component of net position.  Accumulated depreciation reduces the balance of this category.  
Additionally, the Authority includes the right to use leased assets reduced by liabilities used to 
acquire these assets. 

Restricted – consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 
related to those assets, netting to zero dollars for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Unrestricted – represents net position that is not restricted for any project or purpose.  

14. Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Resources 

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are 
available, SCRRA’s policy is to apply restricted resources first. 
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F. Revenues and Expenses 

1. Third-Party Agreements 

SCRRA receives revenues from third-party agreements – items such as charter train services, 
construction of major capital facilities on behalf of third parties, and flagging services provided by 
SCRRA for the safety of non-SCRRA personnel accessing the rail right-of-way.  SCRRA recognizes 
revenue in the period to the extent of eligible expenses incurred.  Any fees determined to be 
nonrefundable are recognized as revenue upon receipt. 

2. Operating and Maintenance Agreements 

SCRRA operates Metrolink services through the use of several operating agreements with various 
vendors.  Under these operating agreements, services are provided for the maintenance of track, 
structures, communications signals and equipment, and rolling stock maintenance, as well as outsourced 
staffing for the operation of passenger train services. 

3. Operating and Non-operating Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated from SCRRA’s primary operations and 
generally include passenger fares charged for commuter rail services, dispatching fees, third-party 
agreements, and maintenance-of-way revenues.  All other revenues are reported as non-operating 
revenues.  Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to SCRRA’s primary operations.   
All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses.  Revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses are recorded when incurred.  

G. Reclassifications 

Certain amounts presented in the 2021 financial statements have been reclassified to be consistent with the 
current year’s presentation.  Such reclassifications have no effect on the increase in net position as 
previously reported.  As of July 2020, the Authority recognized a right to use asset in the amount of $16.6 
million and a lease liability in the amount of $16.6 million. 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The Investment policy of SCRRA sets forth the guidelines for the investment of all funds, except retirement 
funds, and conforms to the California Government Code. The authority to manage SCRRA’s investment 
program is granted to its Treasurer by the Board of Directors.  Pursuant to Section 53607 of the California 
Government Code, the Board of Directors annually appoints the Chief Financial Officer as Treasurer and 
approves SCRRA’s Investment Policy.  The Treasurer is authorized to delegate this authority as deemed 
appropriate.  No person may engage in investment transactions except as provided under the terms of the 
Investment Policy and the procedures established by the Treasurer. 

The Investment Policy requires that investments be made with the prudent person standard, that is, when 
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, the Treasurer 
and designated staff will act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then 
prevailing, including but not limited to, the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of 
SCRRA. 
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A. Authorized Investments 

SCRRA’s Investment Policy is adopted annually by the Board of Directors in accordance with California 
Government Code Section 53601, and has as its objectives the following (in order of priority): 

 Safety of Principal:  Safety of principal is the foremost objective of SCRRA.  Each investment 
transaction shall seek to ensure capital losses are avoided, whether from institutional default, broker-
dealer default, or erosion of fair value of securities. 

 Liquidity:  Liquidity is the second most important objective of SCRRA.  It is important the portfolio 
contain investments for which there is an active secondary market, and which offer the flexibility to be 
easily sold at any time with minimal risk of loss of either the principal or interest based upon then 
prevailing rates. 

 Total Return:  SCRRA’s portfolio shall be designed to attain a market-average rate of return through 
economic cycles. 

 

Under provisions of SCRRA’s Investment Policy, the Treasurer may invest in the following types of 
investments: 

U.S. Treasuries Direct obligations of the United States and securities that are fully and 
unconditionally guaranteed as to the timely payment of principal and 
interest by the full faith and credit of the United States; U.S. Treasury 
coupon and principal Separate Trading of Registered Interest and 
Principal of Securities (STRIPS). 

Federal Agencies 
  and U.S.  
  Government  
  Sponsored  
  Enterprises 

Senior debt obligations, participation certificates, or other instruments 
of, or issued by or guaranteed by, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation (FHLMC or Freddie Mac), the Federal Home Loan Bank 
(FHLB), the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or 
Fannie Mae), the Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), the Student Loan 
Marketing Association (SLMA or Sallie Mae), the Government 
National Mortgage Association (GNMA or Ginnie Mae), the Small 
Business Administration (SBA), the Export-Import Bank of the United 
States, or the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  
Any federal agency or U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise security 
not specifically mentioned above is not a permitted investment. 

State of  
  California and Local 
  Agency Obligations 

Registered state warrants, treasury notes, or bonds of the State of 
California and bonds, notes, warrants, or other forms of indebtedness 
of any local agency within California. 

Bankers Acceptances   Bankers acceptances with a maximum term of 180 days. 

Commercial Paper   Prime commercial paper with a maximum term of 180 days. 

Negotiable  
  Certificates of  
  Deposit 

Negotiable certificates of deposit with a maximum term of 270 days, 
issued by a nationally- or state-chartered bank or state or federal 
association or by a state licensed branch of a foreign bank.   
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Repurchase  
  Agreements 

Repurchase agreements with a maximum term of one year that comply 
with statutory requirements, are documented by a written agreement, 
are fully collateralized by delivery to an independent third-party 
custodian or the counterparty’s bank’s trust department or safekeeping 
department. 

Medium-term  
  Maturity Corporate  
  Securities  

Corporate securities with a maximum term of 5 years, rated AA (the 
Government Code allows A ratings or better) or better by a nationally 
recognized rating service. 

Money Market Funds  Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management 
companies (commonly called money market funds), subject to certain 
conditions and limitations. 

Other Mutual Funds   Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management 
companies (commonly called mutual funds), subject to certain 
conditions and limitations. 

Mortgage or Asset- 
  backed Securities 

Mortgage pass-through securities, collateralized mortgage obligations, 
mortgage-backed or other pay-through bonds, equipment and other 
mortgage and consumer receivable pass-through certificates, or 
consumer receivable-backed bonds with a maximum stated final 
maturity of 5 years, subject to the credit rating of the issuer. 

Investment  
  Agreements 

Investment agreements are permitted with any bank, insurance 
company, or broker-dealer, subject to certain limitations. 

State of California 
  Local Agency  
  Investment Fund  
  (LAIF) 

LAIF is a pooled fund maintained by the State of California and 
managed by the State Treasurer.  In FY21, an additional account was 
opened to deposit CARES funds. 

Variable and  
  Floating Rate  
  Securities 

Variable and floating rate securities, which are restricted to 
investments in permitted Federal Agencies and U.S. Government 
Sponsored Enterprises securities, with a final maturity not to exceed 3 
years. 

Derivatives Derivatives are to be used as a tool for bona fide hedging investments 
only where deemed appropriate. 

 
All investments, unless otherwise specified, are subject to a maximum stated term of 5 years. 

In accordance with Section 53651 of the California Government Code, SCRRA cannot invest in 
inverse floaters, range notes, or interest-only strips that are derived from a pool of mortgages, or in 
any security that could result in zero interest accrual if held to maturity.  The limitation does not 
apply to investments in shares of beneficial interest issued under the Investment Company Act of 
1940 that are authorized investments under Section 53601 of the California Government Code. 
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The following is a summary of cash and investments as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 (in thousands): 
 

2022 2021
Cash with financial institution  $       70,021  $        94,640 
LAIF          71,188          112,577 
Fuel hedge and other assets 13,766 10,081

Total cash and investments  $     154,975  $       217,298 

2022 2021

Unexpended restricted funds (Note 6):

 $        4,271  $          8,024 

California Transit Security Grant Program (CTSGP) 2,018 8,490
California State Transportation Agency State Rail Assistance 
(CalSTA SRA)

10,235 8,513

Low-Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) 4,200 5,349

 Total unexpended restricted funds 20,724 30,376

Advances for construction 13,482 12,077
Other funds          47,421            74,614 

Total restricted cash and investments  $       81,627  $       117,067 

Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service 
Enhancement Account Program (PTMISEA)

Restricted cash and investments for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 are summarized as 
follows (in thousands):

 
B. Risk Disclosures – Deposits 

As of June 30, 2022, and 2021, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) covered $250,000 of the 
bank balance.  The California Government Code Section 53652 requires California financial institutions to 
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The fair 
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited 
by the public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure deposits by governmental 
entities by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value equal to 150% of a governmental unit’s 
total deposit. 

C. Investment Valuation 

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
(an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants on the measurement date.  GASB Statement No. 72 also establishes a fair value 
hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.  Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market 
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participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from sources 
independent of the reporting entity.  The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to 
measure fair value, as follows: 

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 – Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or 
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. 

Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to 
the fair value of the assets or liabilities.  Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments 
whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar 
techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant 
management judgment or estimation. 

D. Risk Disclosures – Investments 

Investments are subject to a number of risks, as follows: 

1. Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the potential loss due to the fair value of an investment falling due to interest rates 
rising.  At June 30, 2022 and 2021, SCRRA did not hold investments that are “highly sensitive to interest 
rate fluctuations,” as defined by GASB Statement No. 40.  As a means of limiting exposure to fair value 
losses arising from increasing interest rates, SCRRA’s investment policy provides that final maturities of 
securities cannot exceed five years.  Specific maturities of investments depend on liquidity needs.  For 
SCRRA’s LAIF investments, the weighted average maturity at June 30, 2022 and 2021 was 311 days 
and 291 days respectively.    

2. Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. 

Money market funds and other mutual funds must be rated AAA (or equivalent highest rating) by two of 
the three largest nationally recognized rating agencies.  Mortgage or asset-backed securities must be 
rated AAA (AA, according to the Government Code) by a nationally recognized rating agency.  The 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), administered by the State of California, has a separate 
investment policy, governed by Government Code Sections 16480-16481.2, that provides credit 
standards for its investments.  LAIF is not rated.  SCRRA’s investment in LAIF is uncategorized as 
deposits and withdrawals are made on the basis of $1 and not fair value.  LAIF represents $71.2 million 
and $112.6 million of SCRRA cash balances at June 30, 2022 and 2021 respectively.   

3. Custodial Credit Risk 

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty 
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, SCRRA will not be able to recover the value of its investments or 
collateral securities that are in the possession of outside party.  SCRRA has fuel hedging contracts held 
by Royal Bank of Canada. 
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4. Concentration of Credit Risk 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an investor’s holdings in a 
single issuer.  SCRRA diversifies its portfolio by limiting the percentage of the portfolio that can be 
invested in any one issuer’s name to 5%.  Investments in LAIF are not subject to this limit on credit 
concentration; however, SCRRA limits the percentage of the portfolio that can be invested in any one 
federal agency or government-sponsored enterprise security to 30%. 

E. External Investment Pool 

SCRRA follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, 
for the investments held in the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), a State of California 
external investment pool, that is not rated.  The pool is valued using pricing models that maximize the 
use of observable inputs for similar securities that make up the investment pool, which includes basing 
value on yields currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.   

During 2021, LAIF announced the authorization to offer special Emergency LAIF accounts to those 
agencies receiving federal and/or state COVID-19 funds.  This is a temporary account solely for the 
deposit of COVID funds.  This account would be in addition to the agencies current LAIF account.  This 
temporary (secondary) account is subject to a $75M cap.  Once the agency has withdrawn all funds from 
the account and after six months of inactivity, LAIF will close this secondary COVID account. 

SCRRA reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF.  The fair value of 
LAIF was calculated by applying a factor of 0.987125414 and 1.00008297 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively, to the total investments held by LAIF.  As of June 30, 2022, and 2021, SCRRA had $72.1 
million and $112.6 million invested in LAIF, respectively, with fair value at $71.2 million and $112.6 
million, respectively. 

F. Fuel Hedge 

SCRRA partially hedges its diesel fuel cost exposure using financial hedges.  The goal of the hedging 
program is to minimize the budget risk resulting from the purchase of fuel on a spot basis and to seek 
overall low fuel cost in the long-term while managing budget risk. Fuel-related derivative transactions 
are recorded at fair value on the Balance Sheet as either an asset or liability depending on their fair 
value; the related unrealized gains and/or losses for effective hedges are deferred. Realized gains and 
losses on these transactions are recognized as fuel expense in the specific period in which the instrument 
is settled. During the year ended June 30, 2022, realized settlement gains totaling $6.7 million were 
recognized in fuel expense.  During the year ended June 30, 2021, realized settlement losses totaling 
$2.1 million were recognized in fuel expense. 
 
SCRRA’s fuel hedge program is classified as a level 3 asset under the fair value hierarchy. 
 
The following is a summary of the derivative fuel instruments as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, which have 
been deemed effective and are recorded as deferred outflows: 
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 Fair Value at June 30, 2022   

Classification 2021 
Change in 
Fair Value 2022 Notional Maturity 

Deferred 
inflows $10,081,572 $3,684,311 $13,765,883 2,646,000 gallons FY 2023 

      
 Fair Value at June 30, 2021   

Classification 2020 
Change in 
Fair Value 2021 Notional Maturity 

Deferred 
outflows $4,069,393 $6,012,179 $10,081,572 5,376,000 gallons FY 2023 

 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the fair value of the fuel hedge investment is $13.8M and the 
accumulated gain is $0.3M.  For the year ended June 30, 2021, the fair value of the fuel hedge 
investment is $10.1M and the accumulated gain is $3.3M. 
 
SCRRA uses Ultra-Low Sulfur Diesel futures contracts traded on the New York Mercantile exchange to 
partially hedge diesel fuel purchases. 
 
Credit Risk.  Counterparties must have a minimum credit rating of BBB- issued by Standard and Poor’s 
or Fitch’s rating service or Baa3 issued by Moody’s Investor Services. At June 30, 2022, the credit rating 
of each counterparty exceeded the minimum required rating. 
 
Basis risk.  All of the District’s transactions are based on the same reference rates; thus there is no basis 
risk. 

 
Termination Risk. The SCRRA oversees the derivative instrument activity and monitors the counterparties, 
who are required to maintain a minimum credit rating and present collateral at certain levels, which 
mitigates the chance of a termination event. To date, no termination events have occurred. 
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3. DUE FROM OTHER AGENCIES 

The amounts due from other agencies consist of construction costs, capital grants and subsidized receivables, and 
operating subsidies based on expenses incurred on their behalf.  The table below summarizes the total amounts 
due from other agencies as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 (in thousands): 

2022 2021

Third-party agreements 7,424            9,654            

Subsidies and grants – federal, State, and local:

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) 34,756          26,099          

Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) 1,685            3,843            

Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 3,489            5,628            

San Bernardino County Transportation Authority (SBCTA) 3,971            7,441            

Ventura County Transportation Commission (VCTC) 793               1,073            

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) 15,887          16,838          

South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 4,481            2,171            

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 10,937          4,183            

Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) 2,815            496               

Other              1,578            (1,360)

Total due from other agencies 87,816 76,066

Allowance for uncollectible accounts               (145)               (625)

Total due from other agencies, net  $        87,671  $        75,441 

 

4. CAPITAL ASSETS 

SCRRA elected to use the modified approach, as defined by GASB Statement No. 34, for infrastructure reporting for 
its original railroad network.  As a result, no accumulated depreciation expense has been recorded for this original 
network.  When SCRRA adds additional railroad network, that is not a part of the GASB 34 original railroad 
network, these additions will be considered depreciable.  A more detailed discussion of the modified approach is 
presented in the Required Supplementary Information section of this report. 
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Capital asset activity for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, is as follows (in thousands):

As restated
6/30/2021 Additions Deletions

Transfer  
to/from CIP

Transfer 
between 
category 6/30/2022

Non-depreciable capital assets:
   Land 168$              $              -  $              -  $              -  $              - 168$             
   Easement and intangible 8,185             -  -  -  - 8,185            
   Construction in progress 124,165        44,743          (12,256)        (114,479)       - 42,173          
   Railroad network 667,764         -  -  -  - 667,764        

Total non-depreciable capital assets 800,282        44,743          (12,256)        (114,479)      -               718,290        

Depreciable capital assets:
   Building and improvements 175,536        8,080             - 7,950             - 191,566        
   Positive train control (PTC) 42,866           -  -  -  - 42,866          
   Rolling stock 639,805        4,280             - 104,711        (334)             748,462        
   Fare collection systems 13,161           -  -  -  - 13,161          
   Computer and other equipment 80,867          2,699            (1,440)          1,818            365               84,309          
   Support vehicles 9,853            1,472            (1,501)           - (31)               9,793            
   Railroad network, depreciable 137,347         -  -  -  - 137,347        

Total depreciable capital assets 1,099,435     16,531          (2,941)          114,479        -               1,227,504     
Less accumulated depreciation for:
   Building and improvements (106,741)       (6,911)           -  -  - (113,652)       
   Positive train control (PTC) (22,358)         (4,286)           -  -  - (26,644)         
   Rolling stock (268,269)       (18,807)         -  -  - (287,076)       
   Fare collection systems (1,678)           (1,316)           -  -  - (2,994)           
   Computer and other equipment (75,434)         (1,646)          793                -  - (76,287)         
   Support vehicles (7,453)           (798)             1,499             -  - (6,752)           
   Railroad network, depreciable (32,088)         (6,990)           -  -  - (39,078)         

Less accumulated depreciation (514,021)       (40,754)        2,292            -               -               (552,483)       

Total depreciable assets, net 585,414        (24,223)        (649)             114,479         - 675,021        

Amortized assets

Intangible asset - right to use leased asset 16,595           -  -  -  - 16,595          

Total amortized assets 16,595          -               -               -               -               16,595          

Less accumulated amortization

Intangible asset - right to use leased asset (1,462)           (1,462)           -  -  - (2,924)           

Total accumulated amortization (1,462)           (1,462)          -               -               -               (2,924)           
Net amortized assets 15,133          (1,462)          -               -               -               13,671          

Capital assets, net of depreciation 1,400,829$   19,058$        (12,905)$      -$             -$             1,406,982$   
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As restated
6/30/2020 Additions Deletions

Transfer  
to/from CIP

Transfer 
between 
category 6/30/2021

Non-depreciable capital assets:
   Land 168$               $              -  $              -  $              -  $              - 168$              
   Easement and intangible 8,185              -  -  -  - 8,185             
   Construction in progress 108,842         20,221         -               (4,898)           - 124,165         
   Railroad network 667,764          -  -  -  - 667,764         

Total non-depreciable capital assets 784,959         20,221         -               (4,898)          -               800,282         

Depreciable capital assets:
   Building and improvements 181,612         -               (6,076)          -                - 175,536         
   Positive train control (PTC) 49,685            - (6,819)           -  - 42,866           
   Rolling stock 632,613         21,403         (14,211)        -               -               639,805         
   Fare collection systems 13,252            - (91)                -  - 13,161           
   Computer and other equipment 80,917           516              (566)             -               -               80,867           
   Support vehicles 9,593             1,592           (1,332)           - -               9,853             
   Railroad network, depreciable 132,449          -  - 4,898            - 137,347         

Total depreciable capital assets 1,100,121      23,511         (29,095)        4,898           -               1,099,435      
Less accumulated depreciation for:
   Building and improvements (102,123)        (8,078)          3,460            -  - (106,741)        
   Positive train control (PTC) (20,949)          (4,416)          3,007            -  - (22,358)          
   Rolling stock (261,204)        (17,676)        10,611          -  - (268,269)        
   Fare collection systems (452)               (1,316)          90                 -  - (1,678)            
   Computer and other equipment (73,884)          (2,116)          566               -  - (75,434)          
   Support vehicles (8,284)            (492)             1,323            -  - (7,453)            
   Railroad network, depreciable (25,466)          (6,622)           -  -  - (32,088)          

Less accumulated depreciation (492,362)        (40,716)        19,057         -               -               (514,021)        

Total depreciable assets, net 607,759         (17,205)        (10,038)        4,898            - 585,414         

Amortized assets

Intangible asset - right to use leased asset 16,595            -  -  -  - 16,595           

Total amortized assets 16,595           -               -               -               -               16,595           

Less accumulated amortization

Intangible asset - right to use leased asset -                 (1,462)           -  -  - (1,462)            
Total accumulated amortization -                 (1,462)          -               -               -               (1,462)            

Net amortized assets 16,595           (1,462)          -               -               -               15,133           

Capital assets, net of depreciation 1,409,313$    1,554$         (10,038)$      -$             -$             1,400,829$    
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5. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

As restated
6/30/2021

Increases Decreases June 30, 2022
Current 
portion

Claims and judgments  $          6,870  $      2,525  $     (1,977)  $          7,418  $      1,800 

Compensated balances              5,520          1,103         (1,080)              5,543          2,199 

Lease liability            15,620                  -            (950)            14,670          1,019 

Net pension liability            15,841                  -         (9,588)              6,253                  - 

Other postemployment benefits            13,650                  -         (5,359)              8,291                  - 

   Total  $        57,501  $      3,628  $   (18,954)  $        42,175  $      5,018 

Current portion            (5,018)

Total long-term obligations  $        37,157 

As restated
6/30/2020

Increases Decreases June 30, 2021
 Current 
portion 

Claims and judgements  $          5,811  $      1,300  $        (241)  $          6,870  $      1,600 

Compensated balances              4,917          1,003            (400)              5,520          2,153 

Lease liability            16,594                  -            (974)            15,620             950 

Net pension liability            13,100          2,741                  -            15,841                  - 

Other postemployment benefits            14,327                  -            (677)            13,650                  - 

   Total  $        54,749  $      5,044  $     (2,292)  $        57,501  $      4,703 

Current portion            (4,703)

Total long-term obligations  $        52,798 

A summary of changes in long-term obligations for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
 is as follows (in thousands):

 

6. UNEARNED REVENUE AND ADVANCES ON CAPITAL PURCHASES 

The SCRRA Member Agencies contribute the funds necessary to carry out its purposes consistent with the 
Board-adopted budget and cost sharing formula in addition to funds derived from operations and grants.  A 
preliminary budget for the following fiscal year is submitted to Member Agencies by May 1 of each year and the 
SCRRA Board must adopt the final budget no later than June 30 of each year. Once SCRRA’s annual budget is 
approved by the Board, each Member Agency pays the annual operating subsidy in advance and on a quarterly 
basis.  An operating surplus indicates that Member Agencies’ operating subsidies exceed their share of actual 
operating revenues earned and expenses incurred by SCRRA during the year.  Conversely, an operating deficit 
indicates that operating subsidies are less than the Member Agencies’ share of actual operating revenues earned 
and expenses incurred by SCRRA; however, an operating deficit does not result in a receivable from Member 
Agencies.  Any operating surplus or deficit remains an unearned revenue, unless otherwise designated by the 
Member Agencies. 
 
Unearned revenue also includes capital subsidies, which are advances from member agencies for capital-related 
projects.  Capital subsidies are recognized to the extent of expenses incurred.  Remaining subsidies are 
maintained in unearned revenue until such time as expenses are incurred.  In addition, unearned revenue 
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activities include funds such as Proposition 1B (Prop 1B), The Public Transportation Modernization, 
Improvement, and Service Enhancement Account Program (PTMISEA), the California Transit Security Grant 
Program (CTSGP), the California State Transportation Agency State Rail Assistance Program (CalSTA SRA) 
and the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP), which for accounting purposes, are treated in the 
same manner as previously described.  These funds are received through assignment from various Member 
Agencies or directly to SCRRA as the primary recipient.  See the description of Proposition 1B, CTSGP, 
CalSTA SRA and LCTOP funds following the unearned revenue activity schedule. 
 
Unearned revenue activity for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, is as follows (in thousands):

2022 2021

Unearned revenue and advances on projects, beginning of year  $  158,290  $    72,359 

Subsidies invoiced:

Operating      184,328      145,579 

Federal operating subsidies                 -        15,885 

Public liability and property damage        13,880        13,129 

Capital                 -        10,509 

Other          2,608        50,693 

Subsidies recognized:

Operating    (186,937)    (190,668)

Federal operating subsidies        (1,265)      (17,243)

Public liability and property damage      (13,880)      (18,733)

Capital        (9,778)      (14,529)

Other                 3               38 

Operating surplus activity      (60,662)        94,585 

Interest allocation             125             385 

Capital (deficit)/surplus        (1,204)        (3,699)

Unearned revenue and advances on projects, end of year  $    85,508  $  158,290 

 
 
Proposition 1B – The Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement Account 
Program (PTMISEA) is a part of the State of California’s Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and 
Port Security Bond Act of 2006 (Bond Act), approved by California voters as Proposition 1B on November 7, 
2006.  A total of $19.9 billion in general obligation bonds was authorized for issuance, the proceeds of which 
were deposited into the state’s PTMISEA fund for specified purposes, including grants for transit system safety, 
security, and disaster response projects.  Of this amount, $3.6 billion was made available to project sponsors in 
California for allocation to eligible public transportation projects over a 10-year period.  Proposition 1B funds 
can be used for rehabilitation, safety or modernization improvements, capital service enhancements or 
expansions, new capital projects, or rolling stock procurement, rehabilitation or replacement. 

California State Transportation Agency State Rail Assistance Program (CalSTA SRA)– The California State 
Transportation State Rail Assistance program funds projects that improve rail service for passengers on 
commuter rail and intercity rail systems in California.  Funding for this program comes from Senate Bill 1 (SB 
1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017, which directs a 0.5% portion of new diesel sales tax 
revenue and allocates half to commuter rail providers and the other half to intercity rail corridors.  The majority 
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of program funding is directed by statutory formula to rail operators, with guidelines defining process and 
timeline for agencies to obtain funding.  The SRA Cycle 1 (FY18-20) awarded SCRRA $10.5M and was paid 
quarterly in full. SRA Cycle 2 (FY20-21) SCRRA was awarded $17.6M and has received $5.0M as of year-end, 
June 30, 2022. 
 
California Transit Security Grant Program (CTSGP) – Senate Bill 88 of the 2007 Statutes appropriates funds 
from Proposition 1B to the California Transit Security Grant Program maintained by the California Governor’s 
Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES, formerly CalEMA), to fund grants for eligible purposes.  Eligible 
activities include construction or renovation projects that are designed to enhance the security of public transit 
stations, tunnels, guideways, elevated structures, or other transit facilities and equipment. 

Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) – The Low Carbon Transit Operations Program is one of 
several programs that is part of the Transit, Affordable Housing, and Sustainable Communities Program 
established by the California Legislature in 2014 by Senate Bill (SB) 862.  The LCTOP was created to provide 
operating and capital assistance for transit agencies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve mobility, 
with a priority on serving disadvantaged communities.  Approved projects in the LCTOP will support new or 
expanded bus or rail services, expand intermodal transit facilities, and may include equipment acquisition, 
fueling, maintenance, and other costs to operate those services or facilities.  SB 862 (Statutes of 2014) 
appropriated $25 million for LCTOP for FY 2015 and it continuously appropriates 5% of the annual auction 
proceeds in the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund for LCTOP each year thereafter. 

Proposition 1B (Prop 1B), CTSGP, CalSTA SRA and LCTOP activity during the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2022 and 2021, was as follows (in thousands): 

Prop 1B

 CalSTA 

SRA LCTOP Prop 1B

 CalSTA 

SRA LCTOP

Unexpended funds, beginning of year 16,514$    8,513$     5,349$      22,542$    6,860$     4,756$      

Funds collected -            2,709       1,702        -            2,788       3,056        

Expenses incurred (10,283)     (1,028)      (2,877)       (6,176)       (1,182)      (2,506)       

 Interest revenue earned on unspent 
 funds 58             41            26             148           47            43             

Unexpended funds, end of year 6,289$      10,235$   4,200$      16,514$    8,513$     5,349$      

2022 2021

 
Additional information about unearned revenue and advances on capital purchases by Member Agency is 
presented as unaudited Supplementary Information following the Required Supplementary Information (RSI).  

7. RISK MANAGEMENT 

SCRRA is exposed to risks associated with torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; injuries to 
employees; and natural disasters.  Under SCRRA’s risk management program, SCRRA retains risk for up to $5.0 
million for each third-party liability claim..  Claims in excess of this amount are covered by an insurance policy 
up to an annual aggregate limit of $347.5 million. SCRRA’s own assets are covered by a property insurance 
program with a self-insured retention of not less than $100,000; $500,000 for track and roadbed; $1 million for 
flood; and $2 million in the event of crash or derailment.  The property insurance program has a general limit of 
$100 million but a sublimit for earthquake and flood of $15 million and $5 million for damage to track and 
roadbed.   
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SCRRA is fully insured for workers’ compensation claims through Liberty Mutual Insurance Co., consistent 
with applicable law.  Construction-related accidental loss risk is transferred to SCRRA’s contractors through 
contract agreements.  During the past three years, no excess claims were incurred. 

2022 2021 2020

Balance, beginning of year  $    6,870  $    5,811  $  12,137 

   Claims incurred and changes in estimate for claims of prior periods       2,525       1,300          250 

   Claims payments      (1,977)        (241)      (6,576)

Balance, end of year  $    7,418  $    6,870  $    5,811 

Due in one year       1,800       1,600          696 

Due in more than one year       5,618       5,270       5,115 

Total claims liabilities  $    7,418  $    6,870  $    5,811 

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities for the years ended June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020, are as 
follows (in thousands):

 

8. LEASES 

SCRRA is committed under various leases for communication towers, crew layover facilities, office space, and 
an easement.  SCRRA is considered a Lessee in the leasing agreements summarized below: 
 
The Authority entered into a lease agreement to lease office space for fifteen years beginning April 2018.  The 
lease terminates in 2032.  Under the terms of the lease, the Authority pays a monthly base fee of $72,311, 
increasing 4.0% annually on the anniversary of the agreement.  The district also pays a pro rata share of 
operating expenses and property taxes, which are not included in the measurement of the lease liability as they 
are variable in nature.  The Authority paid $0.7 million during the year towards those variable costs.  The 
Authority does have an option to terminate the lease.  On July 1, 2020, the Authority recognized a right to use 
asset of $10.8 million and a lease liability of $10.8 million related to this agreement.  During FY21 and FY22, 
the Authority recorded $0.8 million and $0.8 million in amortization expense and $0.5 million and $0.5 million 
in interest expense, respectively for the right to use this asset. 

The Authority has also entered into other various leases for office space, communication towers, crew layover 
facilities, and an easement.  These leases vary in length and represent the remaining obligations related to leases.  
On July 1, 2020, the Authority recognized a right to use asset of $5.7 million and a lease liability of $5.7 million 
related to these arrangements.  During FY21 and FY22, the Authority recorded $0.6 million and $0.6 million in 
amortization expense and $0.2 million and $0.2 million in interest expense, respectively for the right to use these 
assets. 
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Remaining obligations associated with these leases are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30 Principal Interest

2023 1,639$    620$    
2024 1,541     581      
2025 1,563     543      
2026 1,444     499      
2027 1,539     456      

2028-2032 7,653     1,540    
2033-2037 3,457     299      
2038-2042 367        47        
2043-2047 42          1          
2048-2052 10          0          

Future minimum payments 19,255$  4,586$  
Less: Interest (4,586)    
Present value of future minimum payme 14,669$  

 

The Authority amortized the right to use assets as follows during the fiscal year (in thousands):

As restated Balance at 
Lease Activities June 30, 2021 Additions Amortization June, 30 2022

Right to use assets
Office space 10,614$        -$        (920)$            9,694$            
Office furniture 326              -          (154)             172                 
Communications tower 3,200            -          (329)             2,871              
Crew layover 931              -          (43)               887                 
Easement 63                -          (16)               47                  

Total, right to use assets 15,133$        -$        (1,462)$         13,672$           

As restated Balance at 
Lease Activities June 30, 2020 Additions Amortization June, 30 2021

Right to use assets
Office space 11,534$        -$        (920)$            10,614$           
Office furniture 479              -          (154)             326                 
Communications tower 3,528            -          (329)             3,200              
Crew layover 974              -          (43)               931                 
Easement 79                -          (16)               63                  

Total, right to use assets 16,595$        -$        (1,462)$         15,133$           
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9. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

A. General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan Description – All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the 
SCRRA Miscellaneous Plan, an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and 
administrative agent for its participating member employers. 

Benefits Provided – All regular SCRRA employees classified as full-time, as well as part-time regular 
employees and temporary SCRRA workers who work 1,000 or more hours per year, are required to 
participate in CalPERS.  SCRRA’s pension plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-
living adjustments (COLA), and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries through CalPERS.  
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment, and vest after 
five years of service.  These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute 
and SCRRA Board action. 

SCRRA employees are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, the amount of 
which is based on a formula which varies depending on the employee’s retirement plan, date of hire, and 
participation in a public retirement plan prior to SCRRA employment.  On January 1, 2013, the Public 
Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect.  PEPRA distinguishes between so-called 
“classic” employees, who were in a public retirement plan (not necessarily CalPERS) prior to January 1, 
2013, and “new” employees, who first became a member of a public retirement plan on or after January 1, 
2013.  

A summary of SCRRA’s benefits is provided below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Covered Employees – At June 30, 2021, the most recent information available, the following employees 
were covered by the benefit terms for the plan: 
 

 Miscellaneous 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 164 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 279 
Active employees 257 
 
Total 

 
700 

 
Contribution Requirements – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law 
requires that employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the 
CalPERS actuary and shall be effective on July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.  Funding 
contributions for the plan are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS.  The 

 Miscellaneous 
 Prior to  

January 1, 2013 
On or After  

January 1, 2013 
Retirement Age 60 62 
Benefit Formula 2.0% 2.0% 
Average Highest Compensation Period 36 months 36 months 
Maximum % of Final Compensation No max No max 
COLA 2.0% 2.0% 
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actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to fund the costs of benefits earned by 
employees during the year, with an additional amount to pay down any unfunded accrued liability.  SCRRA 
is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of 
employees. 

The required employer contribution rates for fiscal years 2022 and 2021 were 11.94% and 10.58% of 
covered payroll, respectively, resulting in $3.84 million and $3.35 million, respectively, being recognized 
by CalPERS as employer contributions. 

Pension Plan Financial Reports – SCRRA’s pension plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report; 
however, CalPERS issues an audited Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position by employer and plan, 
which is available at the following link:  www.calpers.ca.gov. 

B. Net Pension Liability 

SCRRA’s net pension liability for the plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position.  The net pension liability of the plan is measured as of June 30, 2021, using an 
annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 rolled forward to June 30, 2021 using standard update 
procedures. 

Assumptions and Other Inputs – A summary of significant assumptions and other inputs used to measure 
the total pension liability is shown below: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2020 
Measurement Date June 30, 2021 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 
Discount Rate 7.15% 
Inflation 2.50% 
Salary Increases Varies by entry age and service 
Retirement Age Probabilities of retirement are based on the 2017 CalPERS  

 Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. 
Mortality Rate Table The mortality table was developed based on CalPERS’  

 specific data and the CalPERS 2017 Experience Study.  The 
probabilities of mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS 
Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015.  Pre-retirement 
and Post-retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected 
mortality improvement using 90 percent of Sale MP-2016 
published by the Society of Actuaries. 

Post-Retirement Benefit 
Increase 

The lesser of contract COLA or 2.50% until purchasing power  
 protection allowance floor on purchasing power applies,  
 2.50% thereafter. 

  
 

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%.  The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made 
at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily 
required rates, actuarially determined.  Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, 
the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations, as well as the expected pension fund (Public Employee’s Retirement 
Fund, or PERF) cash flows.  Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers 
will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in future years.  Using historical returns of 
all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term 
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach.  Using the expected 
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each 
fund.  The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at 
the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term 
returns.  The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above 
and rounded down to the nearest one-quarter of one percent. 

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.  The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.   

Real Return  

Asset Class (1) years 1 - 10 (2)

Global Equity 50.0% 4.8% 6.0%

Fixed Income 28.0% 1.0% 2.6%

Inflation Assets 0.0% 0.8% 1.8%

Private Equity 8.0% 6.3% 7.2%

Real Assets 13.0% 3.8% 4.9%

Liquidity 1.0% 0.0% -0.9%

Total 100.0%

(1)  In the System's ACFR, Fixed Income is included in Glaobal Debt Securities
(2)  An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period
(3)  An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period

Asset Allocation

Real Return      
years 11+ (3)

 

Fiduciary Net Position – SCRRA’s pension plan does not issue stand-alone financial reports.  Information 
about the elements of the pension plan’s basic financial statements is not directly available.  However, 
SCRRA’s plan constitutes a portion of the CalPERS PERF, for which a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
– Fiduciary Funds is included in the CalPERS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, located at the 
following link:  www.calpers.ca.gov.  The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements disclose 
information related to the basis of accounting, including the policies with respect to benefit payments and the 
valuation of pension plan investments. 
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C. Changes in Net Pension Liability 

A schedule of changes in the Net Pension Liability for the measurement period ended June 30, 2021 and 
June 30, 2020 is presented below (in thousands): 

Balance as of June 30, 2019 82,185$   69,085$   13,100$   

Changes during the year:

Service cost 3,630         -            3,630         

Interest on total pension liability 5,999         -            5,999         

Changes of assumptions -            -            -         

Differences between expected and actual experience 1,465         -            1,465         

Net Plan to Plan Resource Movement -            -            -            

Contributions – employer -            3,027         (3,027)       

Contributions – employees -            1,940         (1,940)       

Net investment income -            3,484         (3,484)       

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 
     contributions

(3,122)       (3,122)       -            

Administrative expense -            (97)            97              

Net changes 7,972$     5,232$     2,741$     

Balance as of June 30, 2020 90,157$   74,317$   15,841$   

Changes during the year:

Service cost 4,228         -            4,228         

Interest on total pension liability 6,590         -            6,590         

Changes of assumptions -            -            -         

Differences between expected and actual experience 1,684         -            1,684         

Net Plan to Plan Resource Movement -            -            -            

Contributions – employer -            3,349         (3,349)       

Contributions – employees -            1,949         (1,949)       

Net investment income -            16,866       (16,866)     

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 
     contributions

(3,567)       (3,567)       -            

Administrative expense -            (74)            74              

Net changes 8,935$     18,523$   (9,588)$    

Balance as of June 30, 2021  $  99,092  $  92,841  $     6,253 

Increase (Decrease)

Total 
Pension 
Liability

Fiduciary 
Net 

Position

Net 
Pension 
Liability/ 
(Asset)
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Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – The following table presents the net 
pension liability of SCRRA for the plan, calculated using the current discount rate for the plan, as well as 
what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower or 1% 
higher than the current rate (in thousands): 
 

Balance as of June 30, 2020 
Discount rate 1% lower 6.15% 
 Net Pension Liability $ 28,309 
 
Current discount rate 

 
7.15% 

 Net Pension Liability $ 15,841 
 
Discount rate 1% higher 

 
8.15% 

 Net Pension Liability $  5,567 
  

Balance as of June 30, 2021 
Discount rate 1% lower 6.15% 
 Net Pension Liability $ 19,909 
 
Current discount rate 

 
7.15% 

 Net Pension Liability $ 6,253 
 
Discount rate 1% higher 

 
8.15% 

 Net Pension Liability ($  5,013) 
 

 
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources – For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 
2021, SCRRA recognized pension expense in the amount of $2.4 million and $4.6 million, respectively.  At 
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, SCRRA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources (in thousands): 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date  $                       3,028  $                             - 

Changes of assumptions                              358                            167 

Differences between expected and actual experience                           1,885                              70 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments

                             689                                 - 

Balance as of June 30, 2021  $                     5,960  $                       237 

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date  $                       3,839  $                             - 

Changes of assumptions                                  -                              28 

Differences between expected and actual experience                           2,349                                 - 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments

                                 -                         8,300 

Balance as of June 30, 2022  $                     6,188  $                   8,328 
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The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 
2023.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows (in thousands): 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30 

Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of 
Resources 

2023 ($         993) 
2024         (1,143) 
2025         (1,586) 
2026         (2,258) 
2027                - 

Thereafter                - 
 
10. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

Plan Description and Benefits Provided – In addition to providing the retirement benefits described above, 
SCRRA provides postemployment healthcare benefits.  The SCRRA Retiree Healthcare Plan (Plan), an agent 
multiple-employer defined benefit plan, provides healthcare benefits to eligible retirees and their dependents 
through the California Public Employees’ Retirement System healthcare program (PEMHCA), in accordance 
with agreements and memoranda of understanding between SCRRA, its management employees, and unions 
representing SCRRA employees, to employees who retire directly from SCRRA through CalPERS at the 
minimum age of 50 with at least 5 years of CalPERS service or disability.  The Plan was created by action of the 
SCRRA Board of Directors to administer medical insurance benefits for eligible retirees and their dependents, 
and it can be amended through subsequent action of SCRRA’s Board of Directors. 

 
SCRRA pays 80% of the medical premium for the most extensive plan and 90% of the medical premium for all 
other plans to eligible retirees who retire directly from SCRRA.  SCRRA does not provide retiree dental, vision, 
or life insurance benefits.   

Cost of living adjustment (COLA) – The SCRRA Board approved a 2% COLA increase for fiscal year 2023, 
effective on July 1, 2022.   

Contributions – The benefit generally ceases upon death of the retiree or surviving spouse.  The actuarially- 
determined contributions (ADC) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, were $2.66 million and $2.58 
million, respectively, based on the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuations.  The actual contributions for the years 
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $2.7 million and $2.6 million, respectively. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms – At June 30, 2021, the measurement date, the following numbers of 
participants were covered by the benefit terms: 

 Count 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 134 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits   18 
Active employees 284 
 
Total 

 
436 

 
Net OPEB Liability – SCRRA’s net OPEB liability was based on a measurement period of July 1, 2020 through 
June 30, 2021.  The total OPEB liability used as a basis to calculate the net OPEB liability was based on actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2021. 
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Actuarial Assumptions – The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using 
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise 
specified: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2021 
Measurement Date June 30, 2021 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 
Discount Rate 6.25% 
Inflation 2.50% per annum 
Salary Increases Aggregate, 2.75%; merit, CalPERS 2000-2019 

Experience Study 
Investment Rate of Return 6.25% 
Mortality Rate Table CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study 

 Post-Retirement mortality projected fully 
generational Scale MP-21. 

 
Healthcare Cost Trends:  
  Non-Medicare Cost Trend 6.5% for 2023, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.75% 

in 2076 
  Medicare Cost Trend 5.65% for 2023, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.75% 

in 2076 
 
 

Expected Long-Term Rate of Return – CALPERS’ expected rate of return based on Strategy 1 is shown below:  
 

Asset class component Target Allocation Expected Real Rate of Return 

   Global Public Equity 59% 4.56% 
   Fixed Income 25% 0.78% 
   TIPS 5% (0.08%) 
   Commodities 3% 1.22% 
   REITs 8% 4.06% 
Assumed long-term rate of inflation 2.50% 
Assumed long term investment expenses n/a 
Expected long-term rate of return, rounded 6.25% 
Discount rate 6.25% 

 
 

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.25%.  The SCRRA Retiree 
Healthcare Plan is a funded plan because of its participation in the CalPERS California Employers’ Retiree 
Benefit Trust (CERBT), a Section 115 trust fund dedicated to prefunding other postemployment benefits for all 
eligible California public agencies.  SCRRA’s plan constitutes a portion of the CERBT. 
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A schedule of changes in Net OPEB Liability for the measurement period ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 
2020, is presented below (in thousands): 

Total OPEB 
Liability

Fiduciary Net 
Position

Net OPEB 
Liability/(Asset)

Balance as of June 30, 2019  $          25,612  $          11,285  $                 14,327 

Service cost                  1,371                        -                           1,371 

Interest on total OPEB liability                  1,782                        -                           1,782 

Actual vs expected experience                        -                          -                                 -   

Assumption changes                   (498)                        -                            (498)

Contributions – employer*                        -                    2,929                       (2,929)

Contributions – employees                        -                          -                                 -   

Net investment income                        -                       412                          (412)

Benefit payments and refunds*                (1,185)                 (1,185)                               -   

Administrative expense -                                           (9) 9                              

Net changes 1,470               2,147               (677)                        

Balance as of June 30, 2020  $          27,082  $          13,432  $                 13,650 

Changes during the year:

Service cost                  1,388                        -                           1,388 

Interest on total OPEB liability                  1,878                        -                           1,878 

Actual vs expected experience                   (879)                        -                            (879)

Assumption changes                (1,457)                        -                         (1,457)

Contributions – employer*                        -                    2,588                       (2,588)

Contributions – employees                        -                          -                                 -   

Net investment income                        -                    3,709                       (3,709)

Benefit payments and refunds*                (1,295)                 (1,295)                               -   

Administrative expense -                                           (8) 8                              

Net changes                  (365)                 4,994                      (5,359)

Balance as of June 30, 2021  $          26,717  $          18,426  $                   8,291 

Increase (Decrease)

 

* Includes $1.2 million contribution to the trust and consisting of $1.1 million cash benefit payments and 
$0.2 million implied subsidy benefit payments (both paid outside of the trust). 
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Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates – The 
following present the net OPEB liability of SCRRA, as well as what SCRRA’s net OPEB liability would be 
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher than the current rate (in thousands): 

Balance as of June 30, 2020 
Discount rate 1% lower 5.75% 
 Net OPEB Liability $ 17,381 
 
Current discount rate 

 
6.75% 

 Net OPEB Liability $ 13,650 
 
Discount rate 1% higher 

 
7.75% 

 Net OPEB Liability $ 10,583 
 

Balance as of June 30, 2021 
Discount rate 1% lower 5.25% 
 Net OPEB Liability $ 11,834 
 
Current discount rate 

 
6.25% 

 Net OPEB Liability $ 8,291 
 
Discount rate 1% higher 

 
7.25% 

 Net OPEB Liability $ 5,358 
 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of SCRRA, as well as what SCRRA’s net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher than the 
current rate (in thousands): 

 

Balance as of June 30, 2020 
Healthcare cost trend rate 1% lower  
 Net OPEB Liability $ 9,943 
 
Current healthcare cost trend rate 

 

 Net OPEB Liability $  13,650 
 
Healthcare cost trend rate 1% higher 

 

 Net OPEB Liability $ 18,277 
  

Balance as of June 30, 2021 
Healthcare cost trend rate 1% lower  
 Net OPEB Liability $ 4,936 
 
Current healthcare cost trend rate 

 
 

 Net OPEB Liability $  8,291 
 
Healthcare cost trend rate 1% higher 

 
 

 Net OPEB Liability $ 12,448 
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OPEB Expense – For the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, SCRRA recognized an OPEB expense of $1.1 
million and $2.0 million, respectively.  At June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, SCRRA reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources (in 
thousands): 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 

Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $                     - 1,992$              
Changes of assumptions - 589                   
Differences between expected and actual experience 253                   -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 2,590                -

Balance as of June 30, 2021  $              2,843  $              2,581 

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $                     - 2,433$                
Changes of assumptions - 1,782                 
Differences between expected and actual experience - 2,025                 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 2,666                 -

Balance as of June 30, 2022  $              2,666  $              6,240 

 
 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30 

Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of 
Resources 

2023                    $ (1,200) 
2024  (1,180) 
2025  (1,192) 
2026 
2027 

 (1,261) 
 (699) 

Thereafter  (708) 
 
OPEB fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the OPEB plan fiduciary net position is available 
in the separately issued CALPERS financial reports. 
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Litigation – SCRRA is a defendant in various lawsuits.  Although the ultimate outcome of each lawsuit is not 
presently determinable, in the opinion of SCRRA’s legal counsel, the resolution of these matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on SCRRA’s financial condition. 

Grant Adjustments – Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment 
by the grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liability.  The amount, if any, of expenses that may be disallowed by the grantor 
cannot be determined at this time, although SCRRA expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

Service and Maintenance Agreements – SCRRA’s operator services are provided by National Railroad Passenger 
Corporation (Amtrak).  The current agreement expires June 2025. 

SCRRA’s rolling stock is maintained through the use of an equipment maintenance agreement with an 
independent contractor (Bombardier, Inc.).  The eight-year agreement awarded to Bombardier, Inc., expires June 
2025. 

SCRRA maintains infrastructure through various maintenance agreements with independent contractors.  The 
track and structures are maintained under an agreement with Herzog Contracting Corporation, which expires 
June 2026.  Communications and signals are maintained under an agreement with Mass Electric 
Communications, which expires June 2023. 

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Member Agencies under the Joint Powers Agreement (LACMTA, OCTA, VCTC, RCTC, and SBCTA) 
contribute operating subsidies to SCRRA.  SCRRA’s independent governing Board consists of 11 members 
appointed by the Member Agencies (see note 3).  

The operating subsidies invoiced by SCRRA for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, were $181.4 million 
and $158.7 million, respectively.  Self-insurance reserve subsidies invoiced by SCRRA for the years ended June 
30, 2022 and 2021, were $16.8 million and $14.8 million, respectively.  Capital subsidies invoiced by SCRRA 
for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, were $4.4 million and $6.9 million, respectively. 

13. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS IMPLEMENTED 

The following accounting pronouncements were implemented effective July 1, 2020: 

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.  This standard established a single model for lease accounting based on the 
foundational principle that leases are financing of the right to use an underlying asset.  The Statement requires 
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases.  
Beginning net position was restated to retroactively adopt the provisions of GASB Statement No. 87 as follows: 
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Statement of Net Position

As originally 
reported as of 
June 30, 2021

Effects of 
GASB 87 
Adoption

Restated as of 
June 30, 2021

Assets:

Capital Assets
Depreciable assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation 1,386,020$      14,809$      1,400,829$      

Liabilities:

Current liabilities

Lease liability 145                  805             950                  

Noncurrent liabilities

Lease liability 147                  14,523        14,670             

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 1,385,728        (519)            1,385,209        

Unrestricted net assets 26,279             -                  26,279             

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position

As originally 
reported as of 
June 30, 2021

Effects of 
GASB 87 
Adoption

Restated as of 
June 30, 2021

Operating expenses:

Train operations 178,193$         (1,413)$       176,780$         

Depreciation 40,872             1,306          42,178             

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Subsidies and grants- trains and 
maintenance of way 79,754             3                 79,751             

Interest expense (6)                     (623)            (629)           

Change in net position (5,241)              (519)            (5,760)              
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1. THE METROLINK RAILROAD NETWORK 

GASB 34 defines and distinguishes infrastructure assets as long-lived capital assets that 
normally are stationary in nature and normally can be preserved for a significantly greater 
number of years than most capital assets.  As part of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement 
(JPA), the Member Agencies acquired the rail network in existence at the time of the JPA for use 
in Metrolink commuter rail operations.  This railroad network is not included as part of 
Metrolink’s railroad network capital assets.  The Member Agencies retain title and ownership to 
those assets.  As part of the JPA, Metrolink is responsible for the related maintenance and 
operation of members’ assets and rail right-of-way used in operations.  In addition, certain 
members retain responsibility to maintain non-operating segments of their railroad network.  
Metrolink’s infrastructure consists of capital assets created as a result of new capital construction 
and major capital improvement projects, and includes 538 miles of track, 893 bridges and 
tunnels, and 695 signal and communication devices.  The service area for this network covers 
approximately 2,300 square miles with a population of more than 18 million. 

As shown below, the Metrolink railroad network expands over a six-county Southern California 
area: 
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A. Modified Approach for Infrastructure 

Southern California Regional Rail Authority’s (SCRRA) has elected to use the modified 
approach in reporting its Metrolink railroad network.  Under the modified approach, 
infrastructure assets that are part of a network or subsystem of a network are not required to 
be depreciated as long as two requirements are met.  First, the government manages the 
eligible infrastructure assets using an asset management system that has the following 
characteristics: 

 Have an up-to-date inventory of eligible infrastructure assets 
 Perform condition assessments of the eligible infrastructure assets every three years and 

summarize the results using a measurement scale 
 Estimate each year the annual amount necessary to maintain and preserve the eligible 

infrastructure assets at the condition level established and disclosed by the government 

Second, the government must document that the eligible infrastructure assets are being 
preserved approximately at (or above) a condition level established and disclosed by the 
government.  If eligible infrastructure assets meet all requirements and are not depreciated, 
all expenditures made for those assets (except for additions and improvements) are expensed 
in the period incurred.  Additions and improvements to eligible infrastructure assets are 
capitalized.  Additions or improvements increase the capacity or efficiency of infrastructure 
assets rather than preserve the useful life of the assets. 

The condition of the railroad network is measured using the SCRRA Railroad Management 
System Assessment.  The networks and subsystems are track, structures, bridges, tunnels, 
signals, and communications. 

B. Condition Assessment Data 

Governmental accounting standards require that a condition assessment be performed on all 
infrastructure assets every three years.  As an approved alternative to conducting a system-
wide assessment every three years, SCRRA has chosen to create a Metrolink Rehabilitation 
Plan (MRP) that thoroughly assesses the condition of SCRRA’s key infrastructure assets.  
The MRP provides a “boots on the ground” approach to the scope and associated costs for 
both the current backlog and annual costs required to keep the railroad infrastructure at a 
state of good repair. 

C. Basis for Condition Measurement and Measurement Scale 

The SCRRA Board adopted the SCRRA Transit Asset Management Plan (TAM Plan) in 
2016 with the following overarching goal; “To ensure that a transit agency’s assets are 
maintained and operated in a consistent, measurable sate of good repair.  The TAM Plan 
provides guideposts by which an agency can track progress toward a mature, data driven 
asset management system.  During 2018, Metrolink also introduced the Metrolink 
Rehabilitation Plan (MRP) which is an element of the TAM Plan to better define 
infrastructure rehabilitation needs. 
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A team of SCRRA staff and consultants completed a yearlong comprehensive analysis to 
thoroughly assess the condition of SCRRA’s infrastructure assets.  These assessments were 
compiled and documented in the MRP.  Based on these assessments within the MRP, the team 
was able to determine when these assets must be rehabilitated or replaced to support safe, reliable, 
high-quality and efficient services across SCRRA’s rail network. 

The MRP is the first report commissioned by SCRRA’s engineering department to thoroughly 
assess the condition of SCRRA’s key infrastructure components.  This plan focuses on structures, 
tracks, systems and maintenance vehicles, rolling stock, and facilities.  It provides 
recommendations for the rehabilitation efforts required to ensure safe and reliable operation.  
SCRRA’s major infrastructure assets include: Bridges, Tunnels, Culverts, Track, Turnouts, Grade 
Crossings, Non-revenue Maintenance of Way (MOW) Vehicles, Signal Control Points, 
Intermediate Signals, Stations, Communication Sites with Positive Train Control (PTC) 
Antennas, Train Control Centers with Computer-aided Dispatch/PTC, Maintenance Facilities, 
Pomona Campus Facilities, Layover Yards, Locomotives, and Passenger Cars.   

At the direction of SCRRA, infrastructure rehabilitation work was broadly organized into the 
following rehabilitation categories: 

Backlog – This rehabilitation category covers a wide range of deferred rehabilitation on assets 
that are currently obsolete, exceed the age of useful life or a condition assessment indicates is due 
for rehabilitation.  The risks for continuing to defer backlog work are significant and could result 
in failure. 

State of Good Repair – This rehabilitation category indicates the recommended level of 
normalized annual rehabilitation budgeting required to maintain the railroad in a state of good 
repair.  An asset under State of Good Repair is able to perform its manufacture design function, 
not pose an unacceptable identified safety risk, and its life cycle investment needs are met.  

Special Projects – In addition to backlog and annual rehabilitation expenditures, there’s also 
special rehabilitation projects that are needed in order to keep assets in state of good repair.  This 
includes future rolling stock procurements to replace current fleet, converting current locomotives 
to be low emissions compliant, major passenger car overhauls to extend the useful life, and large 
bridge and tunnel projects.  These special projects are typically significant one-time expenditures. 

The key findings of the MRP include the condition and cost estimates for existing infrastructure 
Backlog, recommended State of Good Repair, and Special Projects.  SCRRA’s MRP outlines four 
general approaches to estimating backlogs and state of good repair needs: (1) age, (2) condition, 
(3) performance, and (4) comprehensive assessment (age, condition, and performance). 

Based on these four approaches, SCRRA was able to prioritize reinvestment and rehabilitation 
needs by tiers.  Tier 1 as the highest priority, Tier 2, and Tier 3 as the lowest priority.   
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D. Estimated Maintenance and Preservation Costs 

To ensure consistency in reporting, effective 2012, management prepared a five-year strategic 
capital program plan to more discretely identify the minimum annual costs required to maintain or 
preserve its infrastructure assets.  

 
The estimated and actual annual amounts of infrastructure maintenance and preservation 
costs needed to achieve the minimum railroad condition index standard, which include 
maintenance-of-way, rehabilitation, and renovation capital expenses, for the past 5 years are 
as follows (in thousands): 

 
Year Ended 

June 30 
Estimated 
Amount 

Actual 
Amount 

2022  $99,033  $97,201 
2021  54,335   58,288 
2020        63,731    75,194 
2019   62,800    35,529 
2018   56,600    86,888 
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2. SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED 
RATIOS 

Total Pension Liability
Service cost  $       4,228  $       3,630  $       3,574  $       3,380  $       3,461  $       2,990  $       2,930  $       2,687 
Interest  on total pension liability           6,590           5,999           5,459           4,958           4,563           4,233           3,904           3,572 
Difference between expected and actual 
experience

          1,684           1,465           1,269              531            (771)            (559)            (218)                  - 

Change in assumptions                  -                  -                  -            (586)           3,938                  -            (994)                  - 

Benefit payments, including refunds of 
  employee contributions         (3,567)         (3,122)         (2,817)         (2,582)         (2,228)         (2,071)         (1,895)         (1,633)
Net change in total pension liability           8,935           7,972           7,485           5,701           8,963           4,593           3,727           4,626 
Total pension liability, beginning         90,157         82,185         74,700         68,999         60,036         55,443         51,716         47,090 
Total pension liability, ending (a)  $     99,092  $     90,157  $     82,185  $     74,700  $     68,999  $     60,036  $     55,443  $     51,716 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions – employer           3,349           3,027           2,599           2,370           2,268           2,084           1,807           1,674 
Contributions – employee           1,949           1,940           1,747           1,691           1,650           1,445           1,338           1,262 
Net investment income         16,865           3,484           4,199           4,957           5,726              245           1,039           6,747 
Benefit payments         (3,567)         (3,122)         (2,817)         (2,582)         (2,229)         (2,071)         (1,895)         (1,633)
Administrative expense              (74)              (97)              (45)            (259)              (74)              (29)              (54)                  - 
Net change in plan fiduciary net 
position

        18,522           5,232           5,683           6,177           7,341           1,674           2,235           8,050 

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning         74,317         69,085         63,403         57,226         49,885         48,211         45,976         37,926 

Plan fiduciary net position, ending (b)  $     92,839  $     74,317  $     69,085  $     63,403  $     57,226  $     49,885  $     48,211  $     45,976 

Net pension liability, ending (a) – (b)  $       6,253  $     15,841  $     13,100  $     11,298  $     11,773  $     10,151  $       7,232  $       5,740 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of total pension liability 93.69% 82.43% 84.06% 84.88% 82.94% 83.09% 86.96% 88.90%
Covered payroll  $     28,612  $     27,938  $     25,314  $     22,149  $     20,506  $     19,658  $     17,547  $     17,036 
Net pension liability as a percentage of 
covered payroll

21.85% 56.70% 51.75% 51.01% 57.41% 51.64% 41.22% 33.69%

Following is a schedule of changes in net pension liability (in thousands) and related ratios:

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015202020212022

Change in assumptions – GASB 68, paragraph 68 states that the long-term expected rate of return 
should be determined net of pension plan investment expense but without reduction for pension 
plan administrative expense. None in 2019-2021. In 2018, demographic assumptions and 
inflation rate were changed in accordance to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of 
Assumptions December 2017. There were no changes in the discount rate. In 2017, the discount 
rate was reduced from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent.  In 2016, there were no changes. In 2015, 
amounts reported reflect an adjustment of the discount rate from 7.5 percent (net of administrative 
expense) to 7.65 percent (without a reduction for pension plan administrative expense). In 2014, 
amounts reported were based on the 7.5 percent discount rate. 

Because GASB Statement No. 68 was implemented in FY 2015, it is not possible to present a 
10-year comparison of changes in net pension liability and related ratios. 
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3. SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS  

Following is a schedule of contributions (in thousands):

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially-determined employer contribution  $   3,839  $   3,028  $    2,276  $   2,300  $   1,884  $    2,084  $       1,806  $   1,674 

Contributions in relation to the actuarially-
  determined contributions      (3,839)      (3,028)      (2,276)      (2,300)      (1,884)      (2,084)          (1,806)      (1,674)

Contribution deficiency (excess)  $           -  $           -  $            -  $           -  $           -  $            -  $               -  $           - 

Covered payroll  $ 28,045  $ 28,612  $  27,938  $ 25,314  $ 22,149  $  20,505  $     19,658  $ 17,547 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 13.69% 10.58% 8.15% 9.09% 8.51% 10.16% 9.19% 9.54%

 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially-determined contributions for 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 

 
Information about that valuation is presented below: 
 
Valuation Date June 30, 2021 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal, level percentage of payroll 
Amortization Method Level percent of payroll 
Remaining Amortization Period 16 years remaining for 2021/22 
Asset Valuation Method Investment gains and losses spread over 5-year rolling period 
Discount Rate 7.0% 
General Inflation 2.5% 
Retirement Age Probabilities of retirement are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience 

study for the period from 1997 to 2015. 
Mortality Rate Table The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience 

Study for the period from 1997 to 2015.  Pre-retirement and Post-
retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected mortality 
improvement using 90% of Scale MP-2016 published by the Society of 
Actuaries. 

 

4. SCHEDULES OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  
However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, SCRRA will present information for available 
years.   
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A schedule of changes in total OPEB liability is presented below (in thousands): 
 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Service cost  $      1,388  $      1,371  $      1,416  $      1,375  $      1,336 

Interest          1,878          1,782          1,835          1,696          1,565 

Difference between actual and 
expected experience

           (879)                  -         (2,656)                  -                  - 

Assumption changes         (1,457)            (498)            (205)                  -                  - 

Benefit payments, including refunds         (1,295)         (1,185)         (1,069)         (1,045)            (973)

Changes in benefit terms                  -                  -                  -                  -                  - 

Net Changes            (365)          1,470            (679)          2,026          1,928 

Total OPEB liability, beginning of year  $    27,082  $    25,612  $    26,291  $    24,265  $    22,337 

Total OPEB liability, end of year  $    26,717  $    27,082  $    25,612  $    26,291  $    24,265 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Contributions – employer  $      2,588  $      2,929  $      4,528  $      1,045  $      2,590 

Contributions - employee                  -                  -                  -                  -                  - 

Net investment income          3,709             412             533             539             490 

Benefit payments, including refunds         (1,295)         (1,185)         (1,069)         (1,045)            (973)

Administrative expenses                (8)                (9)                (2)              (13)                (3)

Other changes                  -                  -                  -                  -                  - 

Net Changes          4,994          2,147          3,990             526          2,104 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, beginning 
of year

 $    13,432  $    11,285  $      7,295  $      6,769  $      4,665 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, end of 
year

 $    18,426  $    13,432  $    11,285  $      7,295  $      6,769 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Net OPEB Liability  $      8,291  $    13,650  $    14,327  $    18,996  $    17,496 

Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage 
of the Total OPEB  Liability

69.0% 49.6% 44.1% 27.7% 27.9%

Covered Payroll*  $    32,387  $    31,242  $    29,754  $    24,746  $    23,691 

Net OPEB Liability as a percentage of 
Covered Payroll

25.6% 43.7% 48.2% 76.8% 73.9%

A schedule of changes in plan fiduciary net position is presented below (in thousands):

 
*Determined for the 12-month period ended June 30, 2021 (Measurement Date) 
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5. SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Actuarially-determined employer contribution  $   2,666  $       2,588  $       2,925  $  2,838  $  2,674 

Contributions in relation to the actuarially-
   determined contributions

    (2,666)         (2,590)         (2,929)     (2,789)     (2,784)

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$           (2)$             (4)$             49$        (110)$    

Covered payroll**  $ 31,783  $     32,387  $     31,242  $29,754  $24,746 

Contributions as a percentage of covered
    payroll

8.39% 8.00% 9.38% 9.37% 11.25%

**For the 12-month period ending on June 30, 2022 (fiscal year end).

Following is a schedule of employer contributions (in thousands):

 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for 
the June 30, 2022 measurement date were from the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation.  
Information about that valuation is presented below: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2019 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal, level percentage of payroll 
Amortization Method Level percent of payroll 
Amortization Period 16-year fixed period for 2021/22 
Asset Valuation Method Investment gains and losses spread over 5-year rolling period 
Discount Rate 6.75% 
General Inflation 2.75% 
Medical Trend Non-Medicare – 7.25% for 2021, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.0% 

in 2076. 
Medicare – 6.3% for 2021, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2076. 

Mortality Improvement Miscellaneous: Mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-
2019. 
Dispatching Operations: 2013 RRB Mortality Improvement Scale 

 
 
Because GASB statement No. 75 was implemented in FY 2018, it is not possible to present a 10-year comparison of 
changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios.
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This section of the Southern California Regional Rail Authority’s annual comprehensive financial 
report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the 
financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the 
Authority’s overall financial health. 

Contents Page 
 
 
FINANCIAL TRENDS 
 

 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand  
  how the Authority’s financial performance and well-being have changed  
  over time. 
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REVENUE CAPACITY 
 

 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the  
  Authority’s most significant revenue sources, capital contributions, fares,  
  and member operating subsidies. 
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION 
 

 

This schedule offers demographic and economic indicators to help the  
  reader understand the environment within which the Authority’s financial  
  activities take place. 

67 

 
OPERATING INFORMATION 
 

 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader  
  understand how the information in the Authority’s financial report relates 
  to the services the Authority provides and the activities it performs. 

68 



 

64 
 

2
0

2
2

*
2

0
2

1
**

2
0

2
0

*
2

0
1

9
*

2
0

1
8

*
2

0
1

7
*

2
0

1
6

*
2

0
1

5
*

2
0

1
4

*
2

0
1

3
*

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
/n

et
 a

ss
et

s:

N
et

 p
os

iti
on

 a
t b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f 

ye
ar

1,
41

1,
48

8
$ 

   
  

1,
41

7,
24

8
$ 

   
  

1,
35

8,
20

4
$ 

   
  

1,
37

1,
42

1
$ 

   
  

1,
38

7,
96

0
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
14

3
$ 

   
  

1,
36

3,
76

1
$ 

   
  

1,
36

2,
88

0
$ 

   
  

1,
31

5,
97

2
$ 

   
  

1,
24

0,
78

5
$ 

   
  

In
cr

ea
se

 i
n 

ne
t p

os
iti

on
14

,9
27

   
   

   
   

 
(5

,7
60

)
   

   
   

   
 

59
,0

44
   

   
   

   
 

(1
3,

21
7)

   
   

   
  

(1
6,

53
9)

   
   

   
  

5,
81

7
   

   
   

   
   

18
,3

82
   

   
   

   
 

88
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

46
,9

08
   

   
   

   
 

75
,1

87
   

   
   

   
 

N
et

 p
os

iti
on

 a
t e

nd
 o

f 
ye

ar
1,

42
6,

41
5

$ 
   

  
1,

41
1,

48
8

$ 
   

  
1,

41
7,

24
8

$ 
   

  
1,

35
8,

20
4

$ 
   

  
1,

37
1,

42
1

$ 
   

  
1,

38
7,

96
0

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

14
3

$ 
   

  
1,

36
3,

76
1

$ 
   

  
1,

36
2,

88
0

$ 
   

  
1,

31
5,

97
2

$ 
   

  

N
et

 p
os

iti
on

 b
y 

co
m

po
ne

nt
:

N
et

 i
nv

es
tm

en
t i

n 
ca

pi
ta

l 
as

se
ts

1,
39

2,
31

2
$ 

   
  

1,
38

5,
20

9
$ 

   
  

1,
39

2,
76

5
$ 

   
  

1,
34

4,
15

4
$ 

   
  

1,
34

9,
33

5
$ 

   
  

1,
36

8,
15

7
$ 

   
  

1,
37

0,
62

5
$ 

   
  

1,
33

8,
72

3
$ 

   
  

1,
33

6,
22

1
$ 

   
  

1,
29

3,
35

7
$ 

   
  

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d
34

,1
03

   
   

   
   

 
26

,2
79

   
   

   
   

 
24

,4
83

   
   

   
   

 
14

,0
50

   
   

   
   

 
22

,0
86

   
   

   
   

 
19

,8
03

   
   

   
   

 
11

,5
18

   
   

   
   

 
25

,0
38

   
   

   
   

 
26

,6
59

   
   

   
   

 
22

,6
15

   
   

   
   

 

%
 o

f o
pe

ra
ti

ng
 c

os
ts

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

re
ve

nu
es

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
ti

ng
 

gr
an

ts
. O

pe
ra

ti
ng

 c
os

ts
 a

re
 n

et
 o

f d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n,
 g

as
 ta

x,
th

ir
d-

pa
rt

y 
ag

re
em

en
ts

, r
eh

ab
il

ia
ti

on
 a

nd
 r

en
ov

at
io

n-
ca

pi
ta

l 
an

d 
ro

ll
in

g 
st

oc
k 

le
as

e.
17

.4
1%

12
.7

9%
32

.8
3%

41
.2

9%
43

.2
0%

42
.6

5%
44

.8
0%

48
.4

1%
52

.3
2%

52
.4

9%

* 
N

et
 a

ss
et

s 
re

pl
ac

ed
 w

it
h 

ne
t p

os
iti

on
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt
 o

f
G

A
S

B
 6

3 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

in
 fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r 
20

12
-2

01
3

**
20

21
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
 w

as
 r

ei
ns

ta
te

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 G

A
SB

 8
7

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n,

 N
et

 P
os

it
io

ns
 b

y 
C

om
po

ne
nt

, a
nd

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
es

 o
f O

pe
ra

ti
ng

 C
os

ts
 C

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
R

ev
en

ue
s

L
as

t 
T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs

(D
ol

la
r 

am
ou

nt
s 

in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

Y
e

a
r

s
 e

n
d

e
d

 J
u

n
e

 3
0



 

65 
 

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
0

2
0

1
9

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
3

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
re

ve
nu

es
:

Fa
re

s
28

,1
36

$ 
   

   
   

 
16

,2
24

$ 
   

   
   

 
63

,1
52

$ 
   

   
   

 
82

,1
57

$ 
   

   
   

 
82

,6
76

$ 
   

   
   

 
83

,3
98

$ 
   

   
   

 
84

,5
06

$ 
   

   
   

 
83

,1
11

$ 
   

   
   

 
85

,6
73

$ 
   

   
   

 
84

,3
60

$ 
   

   
   

 
D

is
pa

tc
hi

ng
2,

15
5

   
   

   
   

   
2,

07
9

   
   

   
   

   
2,

30
6

   
   

   
   

   
2,

15
5

   
   

   
   

   
2,

14
4

   
   

   
   

   
2,

07
8

   
   

   
   

   
2,

19
4

   
   

   
   

   
2,

51
6

   
   

   
   

   
2,

48
8

   
   

   
   

   
2,

59
8

   
   

   
   

   
T

hi
rd

-p
ar

ty
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
22

,9
34

   
   

   
   

 
17

,4
36

   
   

   
   

 
24

,5
43

   
   

   
   

 
30

,2
08

   
   

   
   

 
22

,6
41

   
   

   
   

 
17

,5
03

   
   

   
   

 
26

,9
51

   
   

   
   

 
21

,3
55

   
   

   
   

 
26

,6
76

   
   

   
   

 
28

,6
30

   
   

   
   

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f w
ay

 r
ev

en
ue

s
11

,5
12

   
   

   
   

 
11

,5
45

   
   

   
   

 
13

,2
94

   
   

   
   

 
13

,0
30

   
   

   
   

 
12

,7
92

   
   

   
   

 
12

,3
87

   
   

   
   

 
12

,4
37

   
   

   
   

 
12

,9
91

   
   

   
   

 
11

,7
26

   
   

   
   

 
14

,2
99

   
   

   
   

 
G

as
 ta

x 
re

ve
nu

e
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

68
4

   
   

   
   

   
10

,1
01

   
   

   
   

 
Pu

bl
ic

 li
ab

il
ity

 a
nd

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
da

m
ag

e 
re

co
ve

ry
98

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
81

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
52

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

56
6

   
   

   
   

   
4,

21
0

   
   

   
   

   
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

57
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
18

3
   

   
   

   
   

3,
16

4
   

   
   

   
   

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

In
te

re
st

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

co
m

e
44

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
29

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
73

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
19

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
56

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

17
2

   
   

   
   

   
39

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
35

2
   

   
   

   
   

   

T
ot

al
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

re
ve

nu
es

66
,1

60
$ 

   
   

   
 

48
,3

93
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
4,

04
0

$ 
   

   
  

13
0,

85
0

$ 
   

   
  

12
4,

65
7

$ 
   

   
  

11
5,

67
4

$ 
   

   
  

12
7,

23
2

$ 
   

   
  

12
5,

32
8

$ 
   

   
  

13
1,

80
4

$ 
   

   
  

14
0,

38
0

$ 
   

   
  

N
on

op
er

at
in

g 
re

ve
nu

es
:

M
em

be
r 

ag
en

cy
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

su
bs

id
ie

s
19

5,
25

4
$ 

   
   

  
79

,7
51

$ 
   

   
   

 
14

8,
23

7
$ 

   
   

  
11

6,
74

0
$ 

   
   

  
12

4,
73

7
$ 

   
   

  
11

2,
71

1
$ 

   
   

  
11

1,
26

4
$ 

   
   

  
94

,6
32

$ 
   

   
   

 
80

,9
72

$ 
   

   
   

 
71

,5
03

$ 
   

   
   

 
M

em
be

r 
ag

en
cy

 s
el

f i
ns

ur
an

ce
 r

es
er

ve
16

,8
40

$ 
   

   
   

 
14

,8
42

$ 
   

   
   

 
14

,1
58

$ 
   

   
   

 
16

,6
29

$ 
   

   
   

 
17

,6
63

$ 
   

   
   

 
16

,7
87

$ 
   

   
   

 
15

,9
09

$ 
   

   
   

 
15

,6
25

   
   

   
   

 
16

,2
73

   
   

   
   

 
18

,0
66

   
   

   
   

 
N

et
 g

ai
n 

(l
os

s)
 o

n 
di

sp
os

al
 o

f c
ap

ita
l a

ss
et

s
36

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

0,
00

3)
   

   
   

  
(2

,3
87

)
   

   
   

   
 

(4
46

)
   

   
   

   
   

 
(8

,3
30

)
   

   
   

   
 

16
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(2
56

)
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,8
95

)
   

   
   

   
 

(6
03

)
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

In
te

re
st

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

co
m

e
(1

,5
74

)
   

   
   

   
 

(7
85

)
   

   
   

   
   

 
22

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
24

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
(3

0)
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

11
7

   
   

   
   

   
(1

44
)

   
   

   
   

   
 

77
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
77

1
   

   
   

   
   

1,
20

2
   

   
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 n

on
op

er
at

in
g 

re
ve

nu
es

21
0,

55
6

$ 
   

   
  

83
,8

05
$ 

   
   

   
 

16
0,

23
0

$ 
   

   
  

13
3,

17
0

$ 
   

   
  

13
4,

04
0

$ 
   

   
  

13
2,

63
1

$ 
   

   
  

12
6,

77
3

$ 
   

   
  

10
8,

43
9

$ 
   

   
  

98
,4

13
$ 

   
   

   
 

90
,7

71
$ 

   
   

   
 

C
ap

ita
l g

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
su

bs
id

ie
s

13
6,

33
0

$ 
   

   
  

21
3,

85
8

$ 
   

   
  

17
8,

78
5

$ 
   

   
  

89
,5

99
$ 

   
   

   
 

82
,3

11
$ 

   
   

   
 

71
,8

36
$ 

   
   

   
 

82
,2

70
$ 

   
   

   
 

56
,4

85
$ 

   
   

   
 

86
,2

03
$ 

   
   

   
 

11
9,

72
2

$ 
   

   
  

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
ex

pe
ns

es
:

T
ra

in
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

17
6,

53
7

$ 
   

   
  

17
6,

78
0

$ 
   

   
  

18
7,

64
7

$ 
   

   
  

18
6,

96
5

$ 
   

   
  

16
9,

13
1

$ 
   

   
  

17
5,

61
8

$ 
   

   
  

17
2,

31
0

$ 
   

   
  

15
8,

79
6

$ 
   

   
  

15
1,

57
5

$ 
   

   
  

14
7,

55
6

$ 
   

   
  

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f w

ay
54

,2
95

   
   

   
   

 
44

,4
11

   
   

   
   

 
44

,2
48

   
   

   
   

 
44

,0
72

   
   

   
   

 
43

,1
72

   
   

   
   

 
38

,5
96

   
   

   
   

 
39

,5
58

   
   

   
   

 
34

,2
30

   
   

   
   

 
29

,8
67

   
   

   
   

 
29

,3
13

   
   

   
   

 
R

eh
ab

il
ita

tio
n 

an
d 

re
no

va
tio

n 
- 

ca
pi

ta
l

84
,6

66
   

   
   

   
 

49
,9

00
   

   
   

   
 

67
,5

50
   

   
   

   
 

33
,6

94
   

   
   

   
 

39
,5

98
   

   
   

   
 

20
,8

15
   

   
   

   
 

25
,4

06
   

   
   

   
 

22
,5

86
   

   
   

   
 

11
,7

82
   

   
   

   
 

11
,2

14
   

   
   

   
 

G
as

 ta
x 

ex
pe

ns
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
68

4
   

   
   

   
   

10
,1

01
   

   
   

   
 

T
hi

rd
-p

ar
ty

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

23
,0

19
   

   
   

   
 

17
,6

87
   

   
   

   
 

23
,9

04
   

   
   

   
 

27
,1

36
   

   
   

   
 

24
,5

08
   

   
   

   
 

19
,6

02
   

   
   

   
 

24
,8

64
   

   
   

   
 

19
,0

31
   

   
   

   
 

26
,6

07
   

   
   

   
 

29
,7

79
   

   
   

   
 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
an

d 
li

ab
il

ity
 c

la
im

s
15

,6
47

   
   

   
   

 
19

,2
88

   
   

   
   

 
7,

35
0

   
   

   
   

   
8,

26
4

   
   

   
   

   
13

,6
41

   
   

   
   

 
12

,2
15

   
   

   
   

 
10

,3
11

   
   

   
   

 
19

,1
42

   
   

   
   

 
15

,1
00

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
50

   
   

   
   

 
Pu

bl
ic

 li
ab

il
ity

 a
nd

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
da

m
ag

e
1,

73
9

   
   

   
   

   
1,

57
2

   
   

   
   

   
2,

91
5

   
   

   
   

   
4,

45
7

   
   

   
   

   
10

,2
05

   
   

   
   

 
3,

77
5

   
   

   
   

   
1,

68
6

   
   

   
   

   
2,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

17
3

   
   

   
   

   
1,

74
6

   
   

   
   

   
O

th
er

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

11
4

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
9

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
&

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n
42

,2
16

   
   

   
   

 
42

,1
78

   
   

   
   

 
50

,3
97

   
   

   
   

 
53

,1
34

   
   

   
   

 
47

,7
86

   
   

   
   

 
43

,7
03

   
   

   
   

 
43

,7
58

   
   

   
   

 
26

,6
46

   
   

   
   

 
31

,7
24

   
   

   
   

 
30

,9
27

   
   

   
   

 

T
ot

al
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ex
pe

ns
es

*
39

8,
11

9
$ 

   
   

  
35

1,
81

6
$ 

   
   

  
38

4,
01

1
$ 

   
   

  
36

6,
83

6
$ 

   
   

  
35

2,
05

0
$ 

   
   

  
31

4,
32

4
$ 

   
   

  
31

7,
89

3
$ 

   
   

  
28

3,
03

1
$ 

   
   

  
26

9,
51

2
$ 

   
   

  
27

5,
68

6
$ 

   
   

  

In
cr

ea
se

 (
de

cr
ea

se
) 

in
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
14

,9
27

   
   

   
   

 
(5

,7
60

)
   

   
   

   
 

59
,0

44
   

   
   

   
 

(1
3,

21
7)

   
   

   
  

(1
1,

04
2)

   
   

   
  

5,
81

7
   

   
   

   
   

18
,3

82
   

   
   

   
 

7,
22

1
   

   
   

   
   

46
,9

08
   

   
   

   
 

75
,1

87
   

   
   

   
 

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
e 

in
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
pr

in
ci

pl
e*

*
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
(5

,4
97

)
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

(6
,3

40
)

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   

Fa
re

s 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 to
ta

l o
pe

ra
tin

g 
re

ve
nu

es
42

.5
%

33
.5

%
60

.7
%

62
.8

%
66

.3
%

72
.1

%
66

.4
%

66
.3

%
65

.0
%

60
.1

%

*
In

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 G
A

S
B

 S
ta

te
m

en
t N

o.
 3

3,
 A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
an

d 
F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
ti

ng
 f

or
 N

on
ex

ch
an

ge
 T

ra
ns

ac
ti

on
s

, c
ap

ita
l g

ra
nt

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 a

fte
r 

no
no

pe
ra

tin
g 

re
ve

nu
e.

**
T

he
 c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

e 
in

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

e 
is

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 G

A
S

B
 6

8 
in

 2
01

5 
an

d 
G

A
S

B
 7

5 
in

 2
01

8.

(D
ol

la
r 

am
ou

nt
s 

in
 t

ho
us

an
ds

)

St
at

em
en

t 
of

 R
ev

en
ue

s,
 E

xp
en

se
s,

 a
nd

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

L
as

t 
T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs

Y
e

a
r

s
 e

n
d

e
d

 J
u

n
e

 3
0



 

66 
 

 

 
 

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
0

2
0

1
9

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
3

A
m

tr
ak

40
79

9
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

FE
M

A
, F

H
W

A
6,

01
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
52

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

48
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

41
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

(8
0)

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(5

7)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
51

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,5

13
   

   
   

   
 

F
ed

er
al

 T
ra

ns
it 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

19
,9

43
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
,4

52
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

26
,9

52
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

,7
74

   
   

   
   

 
26

,8
75

   
   

   
   

 
15

,7
58

   
   

   
   

 
31

,7
34

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,8
62

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
,7

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

66
9

   
   

   
   

   
St

at
e 

of
 C

al
if

or
ni

a
58

,2
02

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
33

,5
81

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
78

,7
98

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,1

58
   

   
   

   
 

21
,4

72
   

   
   

   
 

37
,2

13
   

   
   

   
 

29
,9

97
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
,6

20
   

   
   

   
   

 
43

,5
94

   
   

   
   

   
   

70
,0

46
   

   
   

   
 

L.
A

.C
. M

et
ro

po
li

ta
n 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
21

,6
61

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
43

,3
08

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,4
73

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
,8

36
   

   
   

   
 

21
,8

10
   

   
   

   
 

16
,0

66
   

   
   

   
 

10
,2

64
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
12

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

,6
01

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
,4

42
   

   
   

   
 

O
ra

ng
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
12

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(6
85

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
96

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
65

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

33
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
49

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(5
79

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

iv
er

si
de

 C
ou

nt
y 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

1,
41

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

44
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

55
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

(3
1)

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

83
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

,5
86

   
   

   
   

 
Sa

n 
B

er
na

rd
in

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

4,
17

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
27

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
56

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

15
2

   
   

   
   

   
1,

67
7

   
   

   
   

   
90

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
42

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
63

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

34
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

53
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

1,
33

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

82
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
42

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

O
th

er
 c

ap
ita

l (
C

M
A

Q
, A

Q
M

D
, F

R
A

)
23

,4
67

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

2,
35

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
42

,8
26

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
,9

89
   

   
   

   
 

9,
58

5
   

   
   

   
   

78
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
78

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
67

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

78
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
84

7
   

   
   

   
   

   

T
ot

al
 c

ap
it

al
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

13
6,

33
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

21
3,

85
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
8,

78
5

$ 
   

   
   

  
89

,5
99

$ 
   

   
   

 
82

,3
11

$ 
   

   
   

 
71

,8
36

$ 
   

   
   

 
82

,2
70

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
56

,4
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

86
,2

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
12

6,
08

5
$ 

   
   

  

So
ur

ce
s 

of
 C

ap
it

al
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

L
as

t 
T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
(D

ol
la

r 
am

ou
nt

s 
in

 th
ou

sa
nd

s)

Y
e

a
r

s
 e

n
d

e
d

 J
u

n
e

 3
0



 

67 
 

 

Fi
sc

al
O

pe
ra

ti
ng

O
pe

ra
ti

ng
 L

ea
se

s
T

ot
al

C
ov

er
ag

e

Y
ea

r
R

ev
en

ue
P

ri
nc

ip
al

 P
ai

d
In

te
re

st
P

ri
nc

ip
al

 P
ai

d
P

ri
nc

ip
al

 P
ai

d
In

te
re

st
L

ea
se

 P
ay

m
en

ts
R

at
io

2
0

1
3

14
0,

38
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

70
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
70

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
19

9.
51

   
   

2
0

1
4

13
1,

80
4

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
79

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

79
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
47

.2
4

   
   

  

2
0

1
5

12
5,

32
8

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
87

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

87
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
43

.6
5

   
   

  

2
0

1
6

12
7,

23
2

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
87

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

87
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

.1
7

   
   

  

2
0

1
7

11
5,

67
4

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
35

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

35
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
21

.6
0

   
   

  

2
0

1
8

12
4,

65
7

   
   

   
23

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
71

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

73
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
45

.5
8

   
   

  

2
0

1
9

13
0,

85
0

   
   

   
13

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
95

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

09
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
42

.3
2

   
   

  

2
0

2
0

10
4,

04
0

   
   

   
15

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
72

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

89
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

.7
4

   
   

  

2
0

2
1

48
,3

93
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

97
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
62

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
60

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
.1

8
   

   
  

2
0

2
2

66
,1

60
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

95
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
65

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
60

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

41
.1

9
   

   
  

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 D

eb
t

C
ap

it
al

 L
ea

se
s

L
ea

se
s 

(P
os

t 
G

A
S

B
 8

7)

L
as

t 
T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
(D

ol
la

r 
am

ou
nt

s 
in

 th
ou

sa
nd

s)



 

68 
 

 

PASSENGER FARES:  2011-12 THROUGH 2021-22 

 
 
 

FAREBOX RECOVERY RATIO:  2011-12 THROUGH 2021-22 

Farebox recovery is a ratio of fare revenue to direct operating expenses (train operations, maintenance-of-
way, including extraordinary maintenance, claims and insurance; excludes gas tax exchange funds, rolling 
stock lease, third-party activity, and depreciation).  The decrease in farebox recovery ratio is due to the 
decrease in passenger fares and increases in direct operating expenses.  During FY20, our ridership – and 
related fare revenue – declined by nearly 90% during the last quarter of the year due to the COVID-19 
pandemic as noted on page 66 under annual ridership. 
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SUBSIDY/PASSENGER MILE:  2011-12 THROUGH 2021-22 

Subsidy per passenger mile is a measure of public funding provided for each passenger mile of travel. 
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RIDERSHIP:  2011-12 THROUGH 2021-22 

During twenty-six years of Metrolink operations, ridership grew steadily with slight declines in  
FY 2007 and FY 2008 through FY 2011.  In FY 2008, record fuel prices helped drive a significant 
increase in ridership.  During the latter part of FY 2008 through FY 2011, ridership steadily declined, 
due in large part to the continued weakened economic conditions in the Southern California region as 
well as nationwide.  On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a 
pandemic, and Metrolink ridership began to decline. With the closing of K-12 schools, followed by 
the California stay-at-home orders on March 19, our ridership – and related fare revenue – declined 
precipitously; by April, monthly ridership and fare revenue had declined nearly 90% compared to the 
same month in 2019.  This has led to an overall decline of year over year ridership numbers. 
 
The following charts show the number of passengers carried for each of the last ten fiscal years and 
the average weekday ridership, based on unaudited conductor counts. 
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TOTAL TRAIN MILES:  2011-12 THROUGH 2021-22 
 
Until FY 2010, total train miles realized annual yearly increases due to additions of new trains, 
routes, and train schedules, as well as modifications to existing schedules.  These modifications have 
enhanced overall service and efficiency.  Several additional emergency services were started after 
the Northridge earthquake and many have been retained.  In May 2002, the 91 Line was opened, 
linking Riverside, Fullerton, and downtown Los Angeles.  In addition to the 91 Line, additional 
trains and extended service (including new weekend service) were added to the Antelope Valley line 
and San Bernardino line.  As a result of the decline in ridership and increased operating costs, 
weekend service was reduced on the Inland Empire Orange County (IEOC) and Orange County 
lines. 
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SERVICE HOURS:  2011-12 THROUGH 2021-22 

 
 
ON-TIME PERFORMANCE:  2011-12 THROUGH 2021-22 
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Date	of	Formation	 August 1991 
   
Form of Government  Joint Powers Authority 
   
Purpose  To plan, design, construct and administer the operation of regional passenger rail 

lines. 
   
Member Agencies  Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority 
  Orange County Transportation Authority 
  Riverside County Transportation Commission 
  San Bernardino County Transportation Authority 
  Ventura County Transportation Commission 
   
Counties Served  Los Angeles County 
  Orange County 
  Riverside County 
  San Bernardino County 
  Northern San Diego County 
  Ventura County 

 
Fleet	and	Other		   Locomotives  62 
Infrastructure	   Passenger Cars  258 
	   Ticket Vending Machines  129 
	   Public At‐Grade Crossings  281 
    Pedestrian At‐Grade Crossings  11 
    Undergrade Crossings  98 
    Overgrade Crossings  156 

      
2021‐22 
Operating Budget (actuals) 

   
Operations 

 
$193,243 

 

    Maintenance‐of‐Way  49,982   
    Settlements  3,604   

     
Total 

 
$246,829 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Source:  SCRRA’s FY22 Q1 Fact Sheet and FY23 Operating Budget 
  



TICKETS 

MOBILE TICKET

MONTHLY 
PASS

7-DAY
PASS

ONE-WAY
TICKET

ROUND-TRIP
TICKET

SATURDAY
WEEKEND
DAY PASS

SUNDAY
WEEKEND
DAY PASS

HOLIDAY
PASS

GROUP
TICKET

10-DAY
FLEX PASS

5-DAY
FLEX PASS

A  v a r i e t y  o f  t i c k e t s  a n d  p a s s e s  a r e  a v a i l a b l e  f o r  M e t r o l i n k  p a s s e n g e r s .   T h e  t y p e  o f  
t i c k e t  s u i t e d  f o r  y o u  w i l l  d e p e n d  o n  h o w  o f t e n  y o u  p l a n  t o  r i d e  M e t r o l i n k .   A l l  t i c k e t s  a r e  g o o d  f o r  

a  f r e e  t r a n s f e r  f r o m  M e t r o l i n k  t o  p a r t i c i p a t i n g ,  d i r e c t l y  c o n n e c t i n g  
t r a n s i t .   O n e - W a y  T i c k e t s ,  R o u n d - T r i p  T i c k e t s ,  S a t u r d a y  a n d  S u n d a y  D a y  P a s s e s ,  H o l i d a y  P a s s ,  

G r o u p  P a s s ,  5  a n d  1 0 - D a y  F l e x  P a s s ,  7 - D a y  P a s s e s ,  a n d  M o n t h l y  P a s s e s  o f f e r  i n c r e a s i n g  
d i s c o u n t s  o f f  t h e  O n e - W a y  p r i c e .
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UNEARNED REVENUE AND ADVANCES ON CAPITAL PURCHASES 

The SCRRA Member Agencies contribute the funds necessary to carry out its purposes consistent with the 
Board-adopted budget and cost sharing formula in addition to funds derived from operations and grants.  A 
preliminary budget for the following fiscal year is submitted to Member Agencies by May 1 of each year and 
the SCRRA Board must adopt the final budget no later than June 30 of each year. Once SCRRA’s annual 
budget is approved by the Board, each Member Agency pays the annual operating subsidy in advance and on 
a quarterly basis.   
 
An operating surplus indicates that Member Agencies’ operating subsidies exceed their share of actual 
operating revenues earned and expenses incurred by SCRRA during the year.  Conversely, an operating 
deficit indicates that operating subsidies are less than the Member Agencies’ share of actual operating 
revenues earned and expenses incurred by SCRRA; however, an operating deficit does not result to a 
receivable from Member Agencies.  Any operating surplus or deficit remains an unearned revenue, unless 
otherwise designated by the Member Agencies. 
 
Unearned revenue also includes capital subsidies, which are advances from member agencies for capital-
related projects.  Capital subsidies are recognized to the extent of expenses incurred.  Remaining subsidies 
are maintained in unearned revenue until such time as expenses are incurred.  Also included within unearned 
revenue activity are Proposition 1B (Prop 1B), California Transit Security Grant Program (CTSGP), 
California State Transportation Agency State Rail Assistance Program (CalSTA SRA) and Low Carbon 
Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) funds, which for accounting purposes, are treated in the same manner 
as previously described.  These funds are received through assignment from various Member Agencies or 
directly to SCRRA as the primary recipient.  See the description of Proposition 1B, CTSGP, CalSTA SRA 
and LCTOP funds following the unearned revenue activity schedule. 
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LACMTA O CTA RCTC SBCTA VCTC O THER TO TAL

Unearned revenue, June 30, 2020  $      8,794  $    10,879  $      2,524  $    12,017  $      3,964  $    34,181  $    72,359 

Subsidies invoiced:

Operating        93,976        20,682          7,371        14,772          8,778                  -      145,579 

Public liability and property damage          6,816          3,092          1,280          1,526             416                  -        13,129 

Capital                  -                  -        10,509        10,509 

Other          4,467        20,605        14,804          7,911          2,906        50,693 

Federal Subsidies                  -          7,471                  -          3,243          5,171        15,885 

Subsidies recognized:

Operating       (94,120)       (40,884)       (21,945)       (22,354)       (11,365)     (190,668)

Public liability and property damage       (11,140)         (3,495)         (1,509)         (1,855)            (735)       (18,733)

Capital            (123)                  -                  -                  -                (3)       (14,403)       (14,529)

Other                (0)                  -                  -                  -                  -               38               38 

Federal Subsidies                  -         (8,500)                  -         (2,599)         (6,144)       (17,243)

Operating surplus activity            (813)        36,972        13,044        20,889        24,492                  -        94,585 

Capital surplus activity         (2,974)            (148)            (100)             160            (595)              (41)         (3,699)

Interest allocation                 5                  -                  -                  -                 1             379             385 

Unearned revenue, June 30, 2021  $      4,888  $    46,674  $    15,468  $    33,711  $    26,885  $    30,663  $  158,290 

Subsidies invoiced:

Operating        94,352        35,741        20,519        21,580        12,136                -        184,328 

Public liability and property damage          7,100          3,343          1,404          1,601             432                -          13,880 

Capital                  -                -                  -                  -                  -                  -                    - 

Other          1,288          1,475             310            (309)            (157)                 1          2,608 

Federal Subsidies                  -                -                  -                  -                  -                  -                    - 

Subsidies recognized:

Operating       (95,640)       (37,217)       (20,829)       (21,270)       (11,979)                (1)     (186,937)

Public liability and property damage         (7,100)         (3,343)         (1,404)         (1,601)            (432)                -         (13,880)

Capital            (232)                -                  -                  -                   1         (9,547)         (9,778)

Other                  -                -                  -                  -                  -                   2                 2 

Federal Subsidies                  -          1,582                -           (3,235)             388 ‐                             (1,265)

Operating surplus activity              (95)         (3,365)         (8,540)             482             274                -         (11,244)

Capital surplus activity            (430)                -                   0                 0            (542)            (232)         (1,204)

Interest allocation                 3                -                  -                  -                   0             122             125 

Cares activity                  -       (33,200)         (6,098)         (7,605)         (2,743)             229       (49,417)

Unearned revenue, June 30, 2022  $      4,134  $    11,690  $         830  $    23,354  $    24,263  $    21,237  $    85,508 

Unearned revenue component:

Operating surplus/(deficit)          1,570          1,635             130             483             684             116          4,618 

Preventive maintenance surplus                  -          8,500                  -                 0                (0)                  -          8,500 

Operating surplus (due to Cares funds)                  -                 0               12        18,522        21,749             376        40,659 

Capital projects and surplus          2,564          1,555             688          4,349          1,830        20,745        31,731 

Unearned revenue, June 30, 2022  $      4,134  $    11,690  $         830  $    23,354  $    24,263  $    21,237  $    85,508 

Unearned revenue activity for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2022, is as follows (in thousands):
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Proposition 1B – The Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement 
Account Program (PTMISEA) is a part of the State of California’s Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air 
Quality, and Port Security Bond Act of 2006 (Bond Act), approved by California voters as Proposition 1B on 
November 7, 2006.  A total of $19.9 billion in general obligations bonds was authorized for issuance, the 
proceeds of which were deposited into the PTMISEA fund for specified purposes, including grants for transit 
system safety, security, and disaster response projects.  Of this amount, $3.6 billion was made available to 
project sponsors in California for allocation to eligible public transportation projects over a 10-year period.  
Proposition 1B funds can be used for rehabilitation, safety or modernization improvements, capital service 
enhancements or expansions, new capital projects, or rolling stock procurement, rehabilitation or 
replacement. 

California Transit Security Grant Program (CTSGP)– Senate Bill 88 of the 2007 Statutes appropriates funds 
from Proposition 1B to the California Transit Security Grant Program maintained by the California 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES, formerly CalEMA), to fund grants for eligible 
purposes.  Eligible activities include construction or renovation projects that are designed to enhance the 
security of public transit stations, tunnels, guideways, elevated structures, or other transit facilities and 
equipment. 

California State Transportation Agency State Rail Assistance Program (CalSTA SRA) – The California State 
Transportation Agency State Rail Assistance program funds projects that improve rail service for passengers 
on commuter rail and intercity rail systems in California.  Funding for this program comes from Senate Bill 1 
(SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017, which directs a 0.5% portion of new diesel sales tax 
revenue and allocates half to commuter rail providers and the other half to intercity rail corridors.  The 
majority of program funding is directed by statutory formula to rail operators, with guidelines defining 
process and timeline for agencies to obtain funding.  The SRA Guidelines currently permit commuter 
operators to apply for a cumulative total of $10.5 million of funding through FY 2019-2020 

 
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) – The Low Carbon Transit Operations Program is one of 
several programs that is part of the Transit, Affordable Housing, and Sustainable Communities Program 
established by the California Legislature in 2014 by Senate Bill (SB) 862.  The LCTOP was created to 
provide operating and capital assistance for transit agencies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve 
mobility, with a priority on serving disadvantaged communities.  Approved projects in the LCTOP will 
support new or expanded bus or rail services, expand intermodal transit facilities, and may include equipment 
acquisition, fueling, maintenance, and other costs to operate those services or facilities.  SB 862 (Statutes of 
2014) appropriated $25 million for LCTOP for FY 2015 and it continuously appropriates 5% of the annual 
auction proceeds in the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund for LCTOP beginning in FY 2016. 
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CTSGP
CalSTA 

SRA LCTO P

LACMTA O CTA RCTC SBCTA VCTC SCRRA SCRRA SCRRA SCRRA TO TAL

Unexpended funds  
June 30, 2020

899$       -$       -$      -$        125$        7,902$   13,616$ 6,860$ 4,756$       34,158$    

Funds collected -              -         -        -          -               -             2,788   3,056         5,845        

Costs incurred (123)        (3)             (837)       (5,213)    (1,182)  (2,507)        (9,865)       

Interest revenue on 
unspent funds

5             -         -        -          1              55          87          47        43              238           

Unexpended funds, 
June 30, 2021

781         -         -        -          123          7,120     8,490     8,513   5,349         30,376      

Funds collected -              -         -        -          -               -             2,709   1,702         4,411        

Costs incurred (75)          1              (3,707)    (6,503)    (1,028)  (2,877)        (14,189)     

Interest revenue on  
unspent funds

3             -         -        -          0              25          31          41        26              126           

Unexpended funds, 
June 30, 2022

709         -         -        -          124          3,438     2,018     10,235 4,200         20,725      

PTMISEA

Proposition 1B (Prop 1B), CTSGP, CalSTA SRA and LCTOP activity during the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2022 and 2021, was as follows (in thousands):
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